
Page 1 of 1 

 
AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING 

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
PLAN COMMISSION 

 February 7, 2019 – 7:00 P.M. 
Council Chambers 

Village Hall – 16250 S. Oak Park Avenue 
 

Regular Meeting Called to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Roll Call Taken 
Communications 
Approval of Minutes: Minutes of the January 3, 2019 Regular Meeting 
  

 
Item #1  PLAT APPROVAL: PETER BOBBER, 9055 & 9101 W. 175TH ST. –  

PLAT OF RESUBDIVISION 
 
Consider recommending that the Village Board grant the Petitioner, Peter Bobber, a final 
Plat of Resubdivision for the properties located at 9055 and 9101 W. 175th Street in the 
R-3 (Single-family Residential) zoning district. The plat would transfer an approximately 
8,134 square foot portion of the rear yard from the 9101 W. 175th Street property and 
consolidate it with the neighboring lot addressed 9055 W 175th Street. 
 

Item #2 WORKSHOP: CTF ILLINIOS, 6800-6820 CENTENNITAL DR –  
SPECIAL USE FOR SUBSTANTIAL DEVIATION FROM PUD 
 

 Consider recommending that the Village Board grant a Special Use for a substantial 
deviation from the Brementowne Mall Planned Unit Development at 6800-6820 
Centennial Drive in the B-2 PD (Community Shopping, Brementowne Mall PUD) zoning 
district to permit exterior storage of vehicles and buses in the front yard. 

 
Item #3  WORKSHOP:  ANYTIME FITNESS, 17823 80TH AVE. – SPECIAL USE 
   

Consider recommending that the Village Board grant the Petitioner, Derek Tucker of 
Anytime Fitness a Special Use for an Indoor Recreation use (fitness/health center) greater 
than 3,500 square feet in size at 17823 80th Avenue in the B-1 (Neighborhood Shopping) 
zoning district. 

Item #4  WORKSHOP:  SHORT TERM RENTAL – TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

Consider a proposed text amendment to the Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance. Section II.B 
(Definitions) and Section V.B. (Schedule of Regulations) for short-term rental uses. The 
purpose of this amendment is to add definitions and to modify the schedule of use 
regulations to permit short-term rentals in residential zoning districts and prohibit them in 
non-residential zoning districts. The Petitioner is the Village of Tinley Park. 

 
 

Good of the Order 
Receive Comments from the Public 
Adjourn Meeting 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         January 3, 2019           

Page 1 of 13 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE  
PLAN COMMISSION, VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, 
COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, ILLINOIS 

 
January 3, 2019 
 
 
 

 
The Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission was held in the Council Chambers of Village Hall on January 3, 2019 at 7:00 
p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Plan Commissioners:  Ken Shaw, Chairman 

Eduardo Mani 
    Garrett Gray 

Angela Gatto 
    Stephen Vick 

Chuck Augustyniak 
Lucas Engel 
MaryAnn Aitchison 

 
Absent Plan Commissioner(s):   Tim Stanton 
 
Village Officials and Staff: Kimberly Clarke, Planning Manager 
    Dan Ritter, Senior Planner 
    Barbara Bennett, Commission Secretary  
 
Guest(s): Emily Bleier, Project Manager, Oculus, INC 

Forest Reeder, Fire Chief and John Urbanski, Asst. Public Works Director. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLAN COMMISSION CHAIRMAN SHAW called to order the Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission for January 3, 
2019 at 8:05 p.m. 
  
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None at this time 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Minutes of the October 18, 2018 Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission were presented for approval.  A Motion was 
made by COMMISSIONER ENGEL, seconded by COMMISSIONER GATTO, to approve the Minutes as presented.  The 
Motion was approved by voice call.  CHAIRMAN SHAW declared the Motion approved as presented.  
 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         January 3, 2019           

Page 2 of 13 

Minutes of the December 6, 2018 Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission were presented for approval.  A Motion was 
made by COMMISSIONER ENGEL, seconded by COMMISSIONER VICK, to approve the Minutes as presented.  The 
Motion was approved by voice call.  CHAIRMAN SHAW declared the Motion approved as presented. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         January 3, 2019           

Page 3 of 13 

TO:   VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FROM:  VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PLAN COMMISSION 
 
SUBJECT:  MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 3, 2019 REGULAR MEETING 
 
Item #1 CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING:  JIMMY JOHNS - 7228 W. 191ST STREET, BLAKE PURNELL 

ON BEHALF OF C82 COMMERCIAL LLC, A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR A SUBSTANTIAL 
DEVIATION FROM THE BROOKSIDE MARKETPLACE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 
Consider recommending that the Village Board grant the Petitioner, Blake Purnell on behalf of C82 
Commercial LLC, a Special Use Permit for a Substantial Deviation from the Brookside Marketplace 
Planned Unit Development to allow for a 940 square foot building addition, façade changes and to permit 
a third drive-thru restaurant at 7228 W 191st Street within the B-3 PD (General Business and Commercial, 
Brookside Marketplace Planned Unit Development) Zoning District. The proposed Substantial Deviation 
would allow a previous bank building to be converted to be a multi-tenant commercial building with a 
drive-thru restaurant (Jimmy Johns).  

 
Present were the following: 
 
Plan Commissioners:  Ken Shaw, Chairman 

Eduardo Mani 
    Garrett Gray 

Angela Gatto 
    Stephen Vick 

Chuck Augustyniak 
Lucas Engel 
MaryAnn Aitchison 

 
Absent Plan Commissioner(s):   Tim Stanton 
 
 
Village Officials and Staff: Kimberly Clarke, Planning Manager 
    Dan Ritter, Senior Planner 
    Barbara Bennett, Commission Secretary  
 
Guest(s): Emily Bleier, Project Manager, Oculus, INC 
 
 
A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER AUGUSTYNIAK, seconded by COMMISSIONER AITCHISON, to open the 
Public Hearing for the Petitioner, Blake Purnell on behalf of C82 Commercial LLC, a Special Use Permit for a Substantial 
Deviation from the Brookside Marketplace Planned Unit Development. The Motion was approved by voice call.  
CHAIRMAN SHAW declared the Motion approved.  
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW noted that Village Staff provided confirmation that appropriate notice regarding the Public Hearing 
was published in the local newspaper in accordance with State law and Village requirements.  
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW requested anyone present in the audience, who wished to give testimony, comment, engage in cross-
examination or ask questions during the Hearing stand and be sworn in. 
 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         January 3, 2019           

Page 4 of 13 

Dan Ritter, Senior Planner gave a presentation and displayed photos as noted in the Staff Report to consider granting the 
Petitioner, Blake Purnell on behalf of C82 Commercial LLC, a Special Use Permit for a Substantial Deviation from the 
Brookside Marketplace Planned Unit Development to allow for a 940 square foot building addition, façade changes and to 
permit a third drive-thru restaurant at 7228 W 191st Street within the B-3 PD (General Business and Commercial, Brookside 
Marketplace Planned Unit Development) Zoning District. The proposed Substantial Deviation would allow a previous bank 
building to be converted to be a multi-tenant commercial building with a drive-thru restaurant (Jimmy Johns).  
 
The adaptive reuse of an existing vacant bank building is likely to create a more economically productive site than another 
bank. The goal is to convert the bank building into a retail building.  The primary tenant will be Jimmy Johns with an 
additional commercial space.  There is no tenant at this time.   
 
The existing site is located in Brookside Marketplace shopping center.  The majority of the shopping center was constructed 
between 2004 and 2010.  The subject property was originally designed for Bank of America that occupied the building from 
2006 until 2015 and has been vacant since that time.  The bank site was designed to be easily converted to a restaurant or 
another commercial use, including requiring increased parking numbers and completion of a larger trash enclosure.  Mr. 
Ritter displayed photos of the existing site as noted in the Staff Report.   
 
The subject property is located in the B-3 PD (General Business and Commercial, Brookside Marketplace Planned Unit 
Development.)  The land surrounding Brookside Marketplace is primarily undeveloped land.  To the east it is zoned B3 
(General Business and Commercial), to the west (former Graystone Golf Course) is zoned ORI (Office and Restricted 
Industrial) and to the south is a mix of unincorporated farmland zoned R1 (Single-Family Residential) and B3 (General 
Business and Commercial).  The area is expected to develop with commercial and entertainment-type uses.   
 
Brookside Marketplace shopping center has had new building additions and façade changes since its original conception.  
Currently there are two fast food restaurants:  Arby’s and Taco Bell and three standalone sit-down dining restaurants:  TGI 
Fridays, Hot n’ Juicy Crab (previously Boston’s) and Panera (standalone restaurants are permitted to have an “ancillary 
drive-thru”).Due to the restrictions of the PUD in regards to fast food and drive-thru restaurants, a Substantial Deviation is 
required based upon the proposed building addition, façade changes, and the addition of a third drive-thru restaurant.  
 

The proposed use is expected to include a Jimmy John’s sandwich shop with a drive-thru.  The drive-thru concept is 
relatively new for Jimmy John’s but has been successful in other locations.  The owner has submitted a letter stating outdoor 
dining is not proposed on the site.  Staff recommends a condition of approval clarifying the requirements that any outdoor 
dining must receive a permit and approval prior to installation to ensure ADA and other code requirements are met. 

Mr. Ritter showed a revised rendering of the site plan.  Staff has recommended that the goal is to provide a successful traffic 
flow through the site to avoid traffic conflicts due to vehicle stacking in the drive-thru lane, two entrances and exits at the 
west of the site and propose one-way entrances.   The drive-thru aisle lane on the south side of the site is also proposed to 
be one-way.  There will be striping to show the one-way direction.  Signage will be installed to reinforce the traffic flow.  
The revised plan removes one of the entrances on the west side of the property, adjusting the entrance curb radius and 
realigning the entrance drive aisle to be straighter, thus allowing for code clearance and a fire truck accessibility.    

The petitioner has completed a parking and drive-thru analysis from Kimley-Horn.  The parking and drive-thru numbers 
were collected during mid-day lunch weekday hours at other locations when Jimmy John’s has the highest percentage of 
sales.  The average peak parking demand was twelve spaces with a maximum of thirteen spaces.  There is a master parking 
agreement that allows for cross parking in the shopping center.  The Kimley-Horn analysis concludes there is expected to 
be 37 parking spaces for expected demand and complies with the Village’s Zoning Code minimum parking requirements.  
Drive-thru vehicle stacking is expected to accommodate up to six average-sized vehicles with reasonable spacing.  Staff has 
some concerns regarding parking for the future tenant that may have a higher demand or a different service model. 

Additional landscaping has been added where the second entrance was removed.  The landscaping will be maintained per 
the original 2006 landscape approval for Bank of American and any dead or missing landscaping from that plan will be 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         January 3, 2019           

Page 5 of 13 

replaced.  A sidewalk will be added to allow a connection into the rest of the shopping center.  Site lighting meets current 
lighting standards. 

There are no changes to the architecture from the previous submittal. 

The signage is a ground sign with a brick base and cabinet.  The design indicates raised lettering and logos.   No signage 
has been approve with this project.  Separate permits shall be submitted for review.   

CHAIRMAN SHAW asked the Petitioner to speak. 
 
Emily Bleier, Project Manager, Oculus, INC explained based on the comments from the previous meeting, the parking has 
been reworked and they have added three parking spots in the front of the building.  Parking lot lights and 2 trees will be 
relocated to allow for the additional spots.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW asked for questions or comments from the Commissioners. 
 
COMMISSIONER MANI noted he likes the revised plan but he has safety concerns regarding the drive-thru.  He feels 
speed tables should be added to slow traffic and a guard rail should be added next to the exit of the drive-thru to keep 
people from walking out in front of cars exiting the drive-thru.   
 
COMMISSIONER GATTO agreed and noted that McDonalds has a rail next to the drive-thru area to keep people from 
walking in front of the cars exiting the drive-thru.   
 
Mr. Ritter noted he would look into some type of rail and safety equipment.     
 
COMMISSIONER AITCHISON and COMMISSIONER AUGUSTYNIAK agreed and noted the revised plan is much 
better than the previous one.   
 
COMMISSIONER GRAY agreed the revised plan is better and agrees with COMMISSIONER MANI regarding the 
potential safety issue.  There is a blind spot at the exit of the drive-thru and it should be addressed.  Customers could be 
distracted and not notice cars exiting the area.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW appreciates the significant difference in the plan.  The flow of the sidewalk on the ring road around 
the building does not connect.  He noted he would like to see them connect.  He also agrees with a rail next to the drive-
thru exit to keep customers from walking in front of a car exiting the drive-thru.  He also noted the striping on road in front 
of the building is odd and runs into landscaping.   
 
Ms. Bleier replied the striping was put there to keep people from driving that way, showing it is one-way, rather than 
walking on it.  She also noted they would look at the sidewalk issue and would consider adding a sidewalk as it would be 
less expensive than the proposed landscaping for the area.   
 
COMMISSIONER GRAY noted he would like to see a curb between the building and the drive-thru exit.   
 
Mr. Ritter noted he would discuss the safety issues with Kimely-Horn and get suggestions of what could be added for 
safety.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW asked for comments from the public.  There were none.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW asked Mr. Ritter to go through the open items.   
 
Mr. Ritter submitted a summary of the open items.      



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         January 3, 2019           

Page 6 of 13 

 
1. Item #1: Discuss the request for a substantial deviation for a proposed building addition, façade changes and the 

allowance of a third drive-thru restaurant in Brookside Marketplace. 
 

2. Item #2: Include a condition of approval that any future outdoor dining must receive a permit and approval prior to 
installation. 
 

3. Item #3: Revised plans are required prior to the Village Board meeting indicating a minimum entrance and drive 
aisle width of 20 feet around the site. 

 
4. Item #4: Include a condition of approval requiring a new site plan if the drive-thru lane ceases operation or a future 

tenant will not utilize the drive-thru to ensure the visual appearance remain high and proper site circulation is 
maintained. 

 
5. Item #5: Include a condition of approval that any future changes in demand or tenants would require a new 

traffic/drive-thru analysis and prior approval to ensure the drive-thru stacking and on-site parking is sufficient. 
 

6. Open Item #6: No signage has been approved with this project and separate permits shall be submitted for review 
in compliance with the PUD’s sign requirements. 

 
A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER AUGUSTYNIAK, seconded by COMMISSIONER MANI to close the Public 
Hearing on Jimmy Johns, 7228 W. 191sty Street. The Motion was approved by voice call.  CHAIRMAN SHAW declared 
the Motion approved.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW asked Mr. Ritter to go through the Standards.   
 
Mr. Ritter noted the Standards as follows: 
 
Standards for Special Use Approval 
 
Section X.J.5. of the Zoning Ordinance lists standards that need to be considered by the Plan Commission. The Plan 
Commission is encouraged to consider these standards (listed below) when analyzing a Special Use request. Staff will 
provide draft Findings in the Staff Report for the Public Hearing. It is also important to recognize that a Special Use Permit 
does not typically run with the land but that Planned Unit Development approvals are the one form of a Special Use that 
does run with the land (similar to a Variation).  

 
X.J.5. Standards: No Special Use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission unless said Commission shall find: 
 

a. That the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the Special Use will not be detrimental to or endanger the 
public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare; 
• The proposal will create safe traffic flow and more pedestrian opportunities that continue a similar design 

as the rest of Brookside Marketplace. 
 
b. That the Special Use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity 

for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within the 
neighborhood; 
• The proposal will not affect other adjacent properties within Brookside Marketplace and will continue to 

add to the commercial opportunities that attract customers to the center. 
 

c. That the establishment of the Special Use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in the district; 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         January 3, 2019           

Page 7 of 13 

• The site is an existing bank development that has remained vacant for a number of year. The redevelopment 
and reuse of the property for other commercial uses will not affect any new or future improvements within 
Brookside Marketplace. 

 
d. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage, and/or other necessary facilities have been or are being provided; 

• The site and Brookside Marketplace have adequate existing utilities, roads, drainage facilities. 
 

e. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize 
traffic congestion in the public streets; and 
• The site layout was designed specifically to accommodate safe vehicle and pedestrian movement through a 

site with a drive-thru window. The proposal will accommodate all parking and staking on-site and any 
future changes would require new reviews and approvals. 

 
f. That the Special Use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in which it 

is located, except as such regulations may in each instance be modified by the Village Board pursuant to the 
recommendation of the Plan Commission.  The Village Board shall impose such conditions and restrictions 
upon the premises benefited by a Special Use Permit as may be necessary to ensure compliance with the above 
standards, to reduce or minimize the effect of such permit upon other properties in the neighborhood, and to 
better carry out the general intent of this Ordinance.  Failure to comply with such conditions or restrictions shall 
constitute a violation of this Ordinance. 
• The proposal will conform to all other regulations. 
 

g. The extent to which the Special Use contributes directly or indirectly to the economic development of the 
community as a whole. 
• The redevelopment and adaptive reuse of a vacant bank site for commercial/retail uses will be beneficial to 

Brookside Marketplace and the community. 
 
Standards for Site Plan Approval 
 
Section III.T.2. of the Zoning Ordinance requires that Planning Staff must find that the conditions listed below must be met. 
Staff will prepare draft responses for these conditions within the next Staff Report. 
 

a. That the proposed Use is a Permitted Use in the district in which the property is located. 
• A Substantial Deviation for changes from the Brookside Marketplace PUD is being requested 

simultaneously. The proposed commercial uses are permitted uses in the underlying Zoning District. 
 

b. That the proposed arrangement of buildings, off-street parking, access, lighting, landscaping, and drainage is 
compatible with adjacent land uses. 
• The buildings architecture, landscaping, and overall improvements will be similar and compatible with the 

existing Brookside Marketplace development. 
 

c. That the vehicular ingress and egress to and from the site and circulation within the site provides for safe, 
efficient, and convenient movement of traffic, not only within the site but on adjacent roadways as well. 
• The site layout was designed specifically to accommodate safe vehicle and pedestrian movement through 

a site with a drive-thru window. The proposal will accommodate all parking and staking on-site and any 
future changes would require new reviews and approvals. 

 
d. That the Site Plan provides for the safe movement of pedestrians within the site.  

• Pedestrian facilities are being added internal to the site and through the site to connect the rest of the 
shopping center that will improve pedestrian connectivity. 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         January 3, 2019           

Page 8 of 13 

 
e. That there is a sufficient mixture of grass, trees, and shrubs within the interior and perimeter (including public 

right-of-way) of the site so that the proposed development will be in harmony with adjacent land uses and will 
provide a pleasing appearance to the public; any part of the Site Plan area not used for buildings, structures, 
parking, or access-ways shall be landscaped with a mixture of grass, trees, and shrubs. 
• The site has sufficient plantings from the original 2006 approval but will add more. Additional landscaping 

is being added to the front (west) of the building where an asphalt entrance is being removed. 
 

f. That all outdoor trash storage areas are adequately screened. 
• There is an existing brick trash enclosure on the site. 

 
CHAIRMAN SHAW asked for a Motion. 
 
MOTION #1 
A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER GRAY, seconded by COMMISSIONER AUGUSTYNIAK to recommend that 
the Village Board grant the Petitioner Blake Purnell on behalf of C82 Commercial LLC, Site Plan Approval for the property 
located at 7228 W. 191st Street in accordance with the plans submitted and listed herein, subject to the following conditions: 

1. Any future outdoor dining shall receive a permit and approval prior to installation. 
2. If the drive-aisle is not utilized in the future, a new site plan approval is required prior to occupancy of the space 

or immediately upon the decommissioning of the drive-thru operations. 
3. Any changes in drive-thru or parking demand from what was presented would require a new traffic/drive-thru 

analysis and prior approval to ensure the on-site drive-thru stacking and parking is sufficient.” 
 
AYES:  ENGEL, MANI, GRAY, GATTO, AITCHISON, AUGUSTYNIAK, VICK AND CHAIRMAN SHAW. 

 
NAYS:  NONE 

 
CHAIRMAN SHAW declared the Motion unanimously approved.     
  
MOTION #2 
A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER ENGEL, seconded by COMMISSIONER GATTO to recommend that the 
Village Board grant a Special Use Permit to the Petitioner, Blake Purnell on behalf of C82 Commercial LLC, for a 
Substantial Deviation from the Brookside Marketplace Planned Unit Development for a building addition, façade changes, 
and to allow a third drive-thru restaurant on the property located at 7228 W 191st Street within the B-3 (General Business 
and Commercial) Zoning District in accordance with the plans submitted and listed herein, and adopt Findings of Fact 
submitted as proposed by Village Staff, and as may be amended by the Plan Commission at this meeting, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

1. If the drive-aisle is not utilized in the future, a new site plan approval is required prior to occupancy of the space 
or immediately upon the decommissioning of the drive-thru operations. 

2. Any changes in drive-thru or parking demand from what was presented would require a new traffic/drive-thru 
analysis and prior approval to ensure the on-site drive-thru stacking and parking is sufficient.” 

 
AYES:  ENGEL, MANI, GRAY, GATTO, AITCHISON, AUGUSTYNIAK, VICK AND CHAIRMAN SHAW. 

 
NAYS:  NONE 

 
CHAIRMAN SHAW declared the Motion unanimously approved.     
 
This will be presented to the Village Board on January 15, 2019 for Adoption. 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         January 3, 2019           

Page 9 of 13 

TO:   VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
FROM:  VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PLAN COMMISSION 
 
SUBJECT:  MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 3, 2019 REGULAR MEETING 
 
Item #2  WORKSHOP/PUBLIC HEARING:   FIRE STATION #47-7825 W. 167TH STREET, VILLAGE OF 

TINLEY PARK ON BEHALF OF FIRE DEPARTMENT, A SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO PERMIT 
A FIRE STATION IN THE R-4 ZONING DISTRICT AND VARIATIONS TO CONSTRUCT A 1-
STORY, FIRE STATION AT 7825 W. 167TH STREET. 

   
Consider recommending that the Village Board grant the Petitioner, Village of Tinley Park on behalf the 
Fire Department, a Special Use Permit to permit a Fire Station in the R-4 Zoning District and Variations to 
construct a new 1-story, 10, 0000 square foot building at 7825 W. 167th Street within the B-3 PD (General 
Business and Commercial, Brookside Marketplace Planned Unit Development) Zoning District.  

 
Present were the following: 
 
Plan Commissioners:  Ken Shaw, Chairman 

Eduardo Mani 
    Garrett Gray 

Angela Gatto 
    Stephen Vick 

Chuck Augustyniak 
Lucas Engel 
MaryAnn Aitchison 

 
Absent Plan Commissioner(s):   Tim Stanton 
 
 
Village Officials and Staff: Kimberly Clarke, Planning Manager 
    Dan Ritter, Senior Planner 
    Barbara Bennett, Commission Secretary  
 
Guest(s): Forest Reeder, Fire Chief and John Urbanski, Asst. Public Works Director. 
 
 
A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER AUGUSTYNIAK, seconded by COMMISSIONER GRAY, to open the 
Public Hearing for the Fire Station #47-7825 W. 167th Street, Village Of Tinley Park on behalf of Fire Department                   
The Motion was approved by voice call.  CHAIRMAN SHAW declared the Motion approved.  
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW noted that Village Staff provided confirmation that appropriate notice regarding the Public Hearing 
was published in the local newspaper in accordance with State law and Village requirements.  
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW requested anyone present in the audience, who wished to give testimony, comment, engage in cross-
examination or ask questions during the Hearing stand and be sworn in. 
 
Kimberly Clarke, Planning Manager gave a presentation and displayed photos as noted in the Staff Report to consider 
granting Site Plan Approval and recommending that the Village Board grant a Special Use Permit to allow a Fire Station in 
the R-4 Zoning District and Variations from the Zoning Code to construct a 10,000 square foot 1-story Fire Station located 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         January 3, 2019           

Page 10 of 13 

at 7825 W. 167th Street.  Ms. Clarke noted that due to the timing of this project, the Village is requesting that the workshop 
be combined with the Public Hearing.   
 
Ms. Clarke displayed a rendering of the proposed new Fire Station #47 facing 167th Street.  The existing site consists of a 
4,260 square foot single story fire station along with a small parking area along Parliament Avenue within a subdivision 
called Brementowne Estates that was annexed in the mid 70’s.  The original fire station was constructed circa 1974 and was 
referred to as Station #2.  In April of 2018 the station number was changed to #47.  Originally the fire station was a permitted 
use in the R4, but a few years later the code was amended and now requires a Special Use in the R4 district.   
 
The Village desires to demolish the existing fire station and construct a new one-story, 10,000 square foot fire station with 
a basement. The subject property is zoned R4 (Single-Family Residential District).  Nearby land uses include Centennial 
Park to the south; Single Family homes to the north and east zoned R4 and single family homes and apartments zoned R6 
to the west.  Parliament Avenue on the east is a driveway into the large parking lot.  Centennial Park is a Village owned 
property and there is an agreement with the Park District to maintain any apparatuses.  There is ample room to the east of 
the property with the anticipation for the need to grow.   
 
The biggest change on the Site Plan is the new building is being expanded approximately 4,200 square feet.  The current 
parking lot will be relocated to the east side where parking will be used for those servicing this location.  The emergency 
vehicles will come in off 167th Street with the ability to use Parliament Avenue to enter into the rear of the station doors, so 
they are prepped and ready to leave on 167th Street as needed.    
 
A landscaping berm is being proposed in between the parking lot and the residential homes to the east.  Initially it was going 
to be a detention pond, but due to MWRD requirements it was discovered that it is necessary to provide for more storm 
water.  A large wet bottom pond is proposed just south of the new parking lot to meet the new MWRD requirements.  A 
berm is one solution to provide privacy to the residential area.  A six (6) foot privacy fence is also planned along the property 
line.   
 
There are three access points into the site.  The aprons are large to accommodate the fire trucks.  The Village is attempting 
to utilize the property available to them to improve the facility.  There are two existing sheds on the property that are 
encroaching.  In the future, during construction, they may be removed.   
 
The Park District needs an area for storage of materials needed to maintain the park.  Locations of the storage areas are 
being discussed. Ms. Clarke displayed a rendering of the proposed floor plan. 
 
Chief Reeder noted they were anxious to get started as soon as possible with a target completion date of April 2020 
 
CHARIMAN SHAW asked for comments from the Commissioners. 
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW inquired if there are separate parcels.  Ms. Clarke replied that there are separate parcels.   
 
COMMISSIONER GRAY asked for clarification regarding the pond.  On the A1 Landscape plan there is a concrete drive 
to the back. 
 
Mr. Urbanski noted the WMO requires a wet bottom pond for sub draining.  This is a smaller version of the Freedom Pond.  
With rough engineering there will be 1-2 feet of water in it.   
 
Mr. Urbanski noted the plan was pre drawn and a title search was done to find out who owned the property.  Now that the 
property has been combined the requirements of under ¾ of an acre have been met for development per the WMO, the 
bottom drainage is required in this area.  The landscape drawing in not updated.   
 
COMMISSIONER AUGUSTYNIAK inquired about the drive in/drive out for the fire trucks.   



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         January 3, 2019           

Page 11 of 13 

 
Chief Reeder replied this is a safety issue as there was a previous accident that damaged the fire truck due to a car trying to 
go around the truck while they were backing into the fire station.  This is a much better traffic flow that keeps everyone 
safe.   
 
COMMISSIONER VICK noted this is a great addition to the Village. 
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW noted he would like to see the basement of the fire station used for community meetings.   
 
Chief Reeder replied that may be possible. Currently there are 4-5 people staffed there and hope to grow that amount to 8 
or 9 with up to 16 people coming and going at shift change.  Ms. Clarke noted there is also a parking lot at the park that 
could be used if necessary.   
 
COMMISSIONER GRAY inquired if there were any safety issues with the wet bottom pond, and asked if a fence would 
be required around it. 
 
Mr. Urbanski replied that less than 50 feet from that area there is a much larger pond that would be a concern and no fence 
is required. 
 
CHARIMAN SHAW asked for further questions from the Commissioners, hearing none asked Ms. Clarke to go through 
the Open Items.   
 
Ms. Clarke submitted a summary of the open items.     
 

1. Investigate the ability to reduce the parking lot driveway width from 40 feet wide to 30 feet wide. 
2. Discuss the ability to reduce the parking lot apron along 167th Street from 40 feet to 30 feet. 
3. The Village should coordinate with the owner of the shed that is on the Village’s property and create a plan to have 

it removed in the near future or part of this project. 
4. Further discuss the location of the open storage area to be used by the Park District. 
5. A final landscape plan should be submitted for staff to review which identifies the species and includes landscaping 

on the proposed berm and wet retention pond. 
6. A formal photometric plan will need to be submitted to ensure conformance with the Village’s lighting standards. 
7. Discuss the request for a Special Use Permit for a Fire Station in the R-4 Residential Zoning District. 
8. Discuss the requests for Variations. 

 
CHAIRMAN SHAW asked for comments from the Public. There were none. 
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW asked for a motion to close the Public Hearing. 
 
A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER AUGUSTYNIAK, seconded by COMMISSIONER VICK to close the Public 
Hearing on Fire Station #47, 7825 W. 167th Street. The Motion was approved by voice call.  CHAIRMAN SHAW declared 
the Motion approved.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW stated the Standards are as noted in the Staff Report.   
 
Motion 1:  
A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER GATTO, seconded by COMMISSIONER ENGEL to recommend that the Village 
Board grant the Petitioner, The Village of Tinley Park, Site Plan Approval at the property located at 7825 W. 167th Street in 
accordance with the plans submitted and listed herein subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Investigate the ability to reduce the parking lot driveway width off 167th Street from 40 feet wide to 30 feet wide. 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         January 3, 2019           

Page 12 of 13 

2. The Village should coordinate with the owner of the shed that is on the Village’s property and create a plan to have 
it removed in the near future or part of this project. 

3. Further discuss the location of the open storage area to be used by the Park District. 
4. A final landscape plan should be submitted for staff to review which identifies the species and includes landscaping 

on the proposed berm and wet retention pond. 
5. A formal photometric plan will need to be submitted to ensure conformance with the Village’s lighting standards. 

 
AYES:  ENGEL, MANI, GRAY, GATTO, AITCHISON, AUGUSTYNIAK, VICK AND CHAIRMAN SHAW. 

 
NAYS:  NONE 

 
CHAIRMAN SHAW declared the Motion unanimously approved.     

   
Motion 2:  
A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER ENGEL, seconded by COMMISSIONER AUGUSTYNIAK to recommend that 
the Village Board grant the Petitioner, The Village Board grant a Special Use Permit to the Petitioner, Village of Tinley Park, 
the following Special Use Permit at the property located at 7825 W. 167th Street in accordance with the plans submitted and 
listed herein and adopt Findings of Facts submitted by the Applicant and as proposed by Village Staff, and as may be 
amended by the Plan Commission at this meeting 
 

1. A Special Use Permit from Section V.B. of the Zoning Code to permit a Fire Station in the R-4 Zoning District 
subject to the following conditions: 

a. A final landscape plan should be submitted for staff to review which identifies the species and includes 
landscaping on the proposed berm and wet retention pond. 

b. A formal photometric plan will need to be submitted to ensure conformance with the Village’s lighting 
standards. 

 
AYES:  ENGEL, MANI, GRAY, GATTO, AITCHISON, AUGUSTYNIAK, VICK AND CHAIRMAN SHAW. 

 
NAYS:  NONE 

 
CHAIRMAN SHAW declared the Motion unanimously approved.     
   
Motion 3:  
A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER AUGUSTYNIAK, seconded by COMMISSIONER GATTO to recommend that 
the Village Board grant the Petitioner, The Village of Tinley Park, at the property located at 7825 W. 167th Street in 
accordance with the plans submitted and listed herein and adopt Findings of Facts submitted by the Applicant and as 
proposed by Village Staff, and as may be amended by the Plan Commission at this meeting. 
 

1. A fourteen-foot front yard Variation from Section VIII.A.7 of the Zoning Code to allow an eleven-foot front yard 
setback for a parking lot instead of the required twenty-five feet.  

2. A sixty-three foot wide Variation from Section VIII.A.6 of the Zoning Code to allow a ninety-three foot wide 
driveway apron along 167th Street instead of the maximum thirty foot width allowed across public property.  

3. A ten-foot wide Variation from Section VIII. A.6 of the Zoning Code to allow a second driveway apron along 167th 
Street forty feet wide instead of the maximum thirty foot width allowed across the public property.   

4. A ten-foot wide Variation from Section VIII.A.6 of the Zoning Code to allow a third driveway apron along 
Parliament Avenue forty feet wide instead of the maximum thirty foot width allowed across the public property.   

5. A half a foot (.5’) Variations from Section VIII.A.5 of the Zoning Code to allow an eighteen foot long parking stall 
instead of the minimum 18.5 feet required 

6. A two-foot Variation from Section VIII.B.Table 2 of the Zoning Code to allow a twenty-four foot parking lot aisle 
width instead of the minimum twenty-six feet required.  



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         January 3, 2019           

Page 13 of 13 

7. A twenty-three foot corner side yard Variation from Section V.B.Schedule 1 of Permitted Uses (By District) to 
allow a two (2) foot corner side yard setback on Parliament Avenue where the minimum corner side yard setback 
is twenty-five feet.   

8. A waiver from Section 158.18, interior lot landscaping, to allow a two foot wide area of plantings along the west 
side of the building instead of the required ten feet wide of planting area.  

9. A waiver from Section 159.19, Parkway Standards, to reduce the required number of parkway trees along 
Parliament Avenue to zero instead of the four required and three instead of the six required along 167th Street.  

10. A waiver from section 158.20, Parking lot landscaping,  to allow zero landscaping within the parking lot where a 
minimum of 15% of the lot is required to be landscaped.  

 
 
AYES:  ENGEL, MANI, GRAY, GATTO, AITCHISON, AUGUSTYNIAK, VICK AND CHAIRMAN SHAW. 

 
NAYS:  NONE 

 
CHAIRMAN SHAW declared the Motion unanimously approved.   
 
This will be presented to the Village Board on January 15, 2019 for Adoption. 
 
Chief Reeder noted after approval from the Village Board on January 15th an open house will be scheduled at the existing 
station showing mock ups of the building layouts.  The neighbors will be invited. 
 
He also noted demolition for the existing station is set for the first week of April 2019. Construction time will be 
approximately 10-12 months.   
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER: 
 

1. Small Cell Text Amendments are scheduled for the January 17, 2019 Plan Commission Meeting 
2. Short Term Rental Text Amendments are scheduled for the February 7, 2019 Plan Commission Meeting 

 
COMMENTS FROM THE COMMISSION 
 
None at this time. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 

None at this time. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

There being no further business, a Motion was made by PLAN COMMISSIONER AUGUSTYNIAK, seconded by PLAN 
COMMISSIONER ENGEL to adjourn the Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission of January 3, 2019 at                                                                                             
9:42 p.m. The Motion was unanimously approved by voice call.  PLAN COMMISSION CHAIRMAN SHAW declared the 
meeting adjourned. 



February 7, 2019 

 
Bobber Resubdivision 

9055 & 9101 W. 175th Street 

 

 
 

 

The Petitioner, Peter Bobber, is requesting approval of a Final Plat of Subdivision for the 

properties located at 9055 and 9101 W. 175th Street in the R-3 (Single-family Residential) 

zoning district. The plat would transfer approximately 8,134 square foot portion of the 

rear yard from the 9101 W. 175th Street property and consolidate it with the neighboring 

lot addressed 9055 W 175th Street.  

 

The Plat approval will formally transfer a portion of property from one lot to an adjacent 

lot. The sale of the property being transferred was completed in 2016. However, a Plat of 

Subdivision was never properly approved by the Village or recorded, so the property was 

never formally transferred to Mr. Bobber’s lot. Both resulting lots of the subdivision will 

comply with the Zoning Code’s minimum lot size and width requirements. No Variations 

or code waivers are required. The Petitioner intends to construct a new detached garage 

on the property following approval and recording of the new Plat. The sale was completed 

by a previous owner or the 9101 W 175th Street property (Van Bruggen). The new owners 

(Hanes) have supplied a letter that they were aware of the sale and have agreed to sign 

the Plat of Subdivision. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Petitioner 

Peter Bobber 

 

Property Location 

9055 & 9101  

W 175th Street 

 

PINs 

27-34-205-31-0000, 

27-34-205-32-0000,  

27-34-205-33-0000 

 

Zoning 

R-3, Single Family 

Residential 

 

Approvals Sought 

Final Plat Approval 

 

 

 

 

 

Project Planner 

Daniel Ritter, AICP 

Senior Planner 
 



Bobber Plat of Subdivision – 9055 & 9101 W 175th Street 

 

Page 2 of 5 

 
Originally, the two lots in this subdivision along with a third lot to the east, where a very sizable single lot with the 

old farmhouse site (9101 W. 175th St) in the middle (#1 on the map below). The property was annexed into the 

Village along with the surrounding Timbers Edge Subdivision in 1978 (Ord. 78-O-018). Since the original annexation, 

the lot has been subdivided two times to create additional buildable lots. The first subdivision was in 1992 which 

established the lot at 9101 W. 175th Street and a new home was constructed on it (#2 on the map below). The 

second subdivision was approved in 2001 for a third lot and a new home located at 9051 175th Street (#3 on the 

map below). This third lot is in contact with a public right-of-way as required by code. However, to avoid an 

additional curb cut along 175th Street, the two properties agreed to share an apron and driveway as a condition of 

approval. A cross-access and maintenance agreement is recorded to the two properties. All past subdivisions were 

“by-right” subdivisions and all resulting lots and homes met the zoning requirements of the R-3 Zoning District and 

continue to meet those requirements as they exist today. The area being proposed to be transferred between lots is 

outlined in red below. 

 

 



Bobber Plat of Subdivision – 9055 & 9101 W 175th Street 

 

Page 3 of 5 

 

Both lots affected by the proposed resubdivision (blue stars on the zoning map below) are zoned R-3, Single-Family 

Residential. Although the current zoning map indicates these lots are zoned as part of the surrounding Timber’s 

Edge Planned Unit Development (PUD), the farmhouse lot was exempt from the PUD as part of the original 

annexation agreement (Ord. 78-O-018) due to its existing nature and not being part of the new development. The lot 

(now three separate lots) was given a regular R-3 zoning designation, which is the underlying zoning district for the 

Timber’s Edge PUD. The surrounding lots to the west, east and south are zoned R-3 PD (Single Family Residential, 

Timber’s Edge PUD). The lots to the north across 175th Street are zoned R-2, Single Family Residential. 

 
 

 
 

R-2 

R-3 

R-3 PD R-3 PD 

R-3 PD 



Bobber Plat of Subdivision – 9055 & 9101 W 175th Street 

 

Page 4 of 5 

 

In 2016, the then owner of the 9101 W. 175th Street property (Van Bruggen) created two taxing lots with separate 

Property Index Numbers (PINs) for the site. The owner then sold the back portion of the property to his neighbor, 

9055 W. 175th Street (Bobber) for their private use. It was incorrectly assumed that due to an exemption in the 

Illinois Plat Act for transfer of property between neighboring lots, that no further approvals were required to 

formally transfer the property between lots. However, the creation and separate PINs does not formally subdivide 

the property, nor does it consolidate the two lots. The Village does not require real estate transfer stamps or sales 

approvals and the sale was unknown until Mr. Bobber began discussions about constructing a second detached 

garage on the property.  

 

Approval of a Plat of Subdivision is required for any 

transfer of a portion of land or change in a 

property’s boundaries within the Village (or 

unincorporated land within 1.5 miles), unless all 

resulting lots are greater than 5 acres. This ensures 

that land within the Village of Tinley Park is 

subdivided in a way that is coordinated with the 

adopted Zoning Code, Subdivision Code and 

Comprehensive Plan. While there are not any set 

standards to review for Plat approval, the most 

common concerns are that minimum bulk zoning 

requirements (setbacks, lot width, lot size, etc.) are 

met, the property has adequate and safe access to 

public roadways, available access to utilities and 

proper land dedications are obtained. The review of 

new Plats for existing lots, prevents situations that 

are not in the long-term vision or interest of the 

Village and that could potentially reduce property 

values. For example, the plat review would prevent 

land-locked lots that have no access from a public 

way and utilities; thus the lots cannot be developed 

without going onto private property. It also prevents 

odd non-conforming lot situations that would 

create a substandard lot (someone selling their 

entire front or rear yard to their neighbor). 

 

Staff was concerned about what the Hanes Family 

understood as their property due to the property at 

9101 W. 175th Street being sold from Van Bruggen 

to the Hanes Family in 2016.. Following discussions 

and review of the history, sales documents, and proposal with the Village and their attorney, the Hanes’ agreed to 

sign the proposed Plat of Subdivision. A letter was supplied stating their intent to sign the Plat once approved. 

 

While the proposed Plat of Subdivision did not follow a typical path, the lot changes do not create any odd or non-

conforming situations. It is not expected the transfer of property from one lot to another will have any effect on 

neighboring properties or their values. There are no known open items that need to be addressed. 

 

 
 

 



Bobber Plat of Subdivision – 9055 & 9101 W 175th Street 

 

Page 5 of 5 

 

If the Plan Commission wishes to take action, an appropriate wording of the motions would read:  

 

 “…make a motion to recommend that the Village Board grant approval for a Final Plat of Subdivision to the 

Petitioner, Peter Bobber, for the Bobber Resubdivision that would transfer approximately 8,134 square foot of rear 

yard property from the property located at 9101 W. 175th Street (Hanes) to the neighboring property at 9055 W. 

175th Street (Bobber) in the R-3 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district.” 

 

…with the following conditions: 

  [any conditions that the Commissioners would like to add] 

 

 

Submitted Sheet Name Prepared By 
Date On 

Sheet 

Bobber Plat of Resubdivision Landmark Eng. LLC 12/6/2018 

Bobber Topographic Survey Landmark Eng. LLC 12/6/2018 

Approval Letter and Intent to Sign Plat Jennifer & Joshua Haynes 12/20/2018 

 



























February 7, 2019 

 
CTF Illinois 

6800 – 6820 Centennial Drive 

 

 
 

 
The Petitioner, CTF Illinois, is seeking approval of a Special Use Permit for a Substantial 

Deviation from the Brementowne Mall Planned Unit Development (PUD) that would allow 

for exterior storage of vehicles and buses in the front yard at the properties located at 

6800 – 6820 Centennial Drive in the B-2 PD (Community Shopping), Brementowne PUD) 

zoning district. 

 

CTF Illinois is a not-for-profit organization that helps to assist people with developmental 

disabilities and their families. They provide educational, training, vocational and other 

opportunities that allow people with developmental disabilities to grow and become more 

independent. CTF Illinois currently operates many programs at 6775 Prosperi Drive in 

Tinley Park and will be relocating some of their programs to this new location. The 

organization’s use is permitted as a Vocational Education Facility. However, to assist in its 

mission, they often use vans and 12-15 person buses to transport its students. These 

buses and vans are typically kept on-site so that staff does not need to retrieve them from 

off-site locations.  

 

Open Storage is prohibited in all Business Districts including the storage of vehicles over 

8,000 lbs.; the CTF buses exceed this weight limit.  In addition, open storage is not 

permitted in front or corner side yards. As part of a Planned Unit Development there are 

opportunities for more flexibility when considering exceptions to the code; the request 

has been reviewed by staff in context of the approved PUD.   

 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Petitioner 

CTF Illinois 

 

Property Location 

6800 – 6820  

Centennial Drive 

 

PIN 

28-19-100-050-0000 & 

28-19-100-051-0000 

 

Zoning 

B-2 PD (Community 

Shopping, Brementowne 

Mall PUD) 

 

Approvals Sought 

Special Use Permit 

 

 

 

 

 

Project Planner 

Daniel Ritter, AICP 

Senior Planner 
 



CTF Illinois – 6800-6820 Centennial Dr. 

 

Page 2 of 7 

 
CTF Illinois is looking to purchase the buildings 

at 6800-6820 Centennial Drive. The site includes 

two buildings that total a little over 20,000 

square feet. CTF currently operates at a 40,000 

square foot space at 6775 Prosperi Drive and 

also operates The Painted Turtle art studio at 

17459 Oak Park Avenue in downtown Tinley 

Park. CTF will not be relocating the entire 

capacity of its Prosperi Drive location to this 

site. Some of the program’s capabilities will be 

relocated to nearby locations in Orland Park 

and Homewood. 

 

The proposed location has traditionally been 

utilized as office space for medical and service 

uses. The subject site consists of two buildings 

on two (2) separate lots approved in 1989 and 

constructed in 1990 for Prudential Insurance. 

The site was most recently owned and primarily 

utilized by Mack Companies. 

 

 

The subject parcels are zoned B-2 PD (Community 

Shopping, Brementowne Mall PUD). One (1) of the parcels 

appears not to be located in the PUD but this is an error 

on the Zoning layer and both parcels are located in the 

Brementowne PUD. The properties to the north 

(Kindercare) and west (Medical Office) are located in the 

same B-2 PD (Community Shopping, Brementowne Mall 

PUD). To the south is Brementowne Manor which is an 

assisted living development zoned R7 PD (Medium-density 

residential, Brementowne Manor PUD). To the east is 

Bremen Woods which is unincorporated land owned by 

Cook County Forest Preserve District. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CTF Illinois – 6800-6820 Centennial Dr. 

 

Page 3 of 7 

 
The use of the site as a Vocational Educational Facility is a permitted use. However, open exterior storage of a 

business’s vehicles over 8,000 lbs are prohibited in all business zoning districts. They are permitted in the M-1 

(Manufacturing) and MU-1 (Duvan Drive Mixed-Use Overlay) zoning districts and with a special use permit in the ORI 

(Office and Restricted Industrial). The Brementowne Mall PUD allows for some flexibility in regards to these open 

storage requirements due to the unique design and location of the site and the unique characteristics of the 

proposed organization. Additionally, it is important to note that the vehicle storage is accessory to the principal and 

permitted use as a vocational educational facility. Vehicle storage is not required to operate the principal use and is 

only to help assist in the organizational mission. The proposed Substantial Deviation will permit up to eight (8) 

vehicles to be stored on-site in the front yard. These vehicles include four (4) vans, three (3) 12-person buses, and 

one (1) 15-person bus. Only the buses exceed the weight limitation.  

 

 

 
Above: Examples of the van and bus that would be stored on-site at 6800-6820 Centennial Drive. 

 
Open Item #1: Discuss the Special Use Permit for a Substantial Deviation from the PUD to permit open storage of 

vehicles over 8,000 lbs.  

 

 
Site Plan and Landscape 

 

There are no immediate 

changes proposed to the site 

layout, lighting, landscaping or 

building architecture. The 

petitioner has proposed three 

(3) options for where the buses 

and vans could be stored on the 

site within legally stripped 

parking spaces. Staff 

recommends parking similar to 

“Option 2” that would located 

the vehicles on the southwest 

side of the property where it is 

least visible from Oak Park 

Avenue and separated from the 

rest of the parking field.  

 



CTF Illinois – 6800-6820 Centennial Dr. 

 

Page 4 of 7 

The existing parking lot is entirely located in the primary and secondary front yards of the properties. Due to the 

existing nature of the site and the current layout, there are no alternative options that would allow the vehicles to 

be parked in the rear yard; the vehicles will be parked in a front yard regardless of their location on the site.  

 

Screening is required around the proposed vehicle storage area to screen it from public view. However, there are no 

additional locations where trees or bushes can be added that will give them enough room to survive. Additionally, 

fencing in the front yard is only likely to detract from the site and creates visibility concerns. The site currently has 

extensive landscaping on the site that is properly maintained. The landscaping was proposed and installed in 2009 

(approved Landscape Plan is attached). The landscaping on this site will be required to be maintained at its current 

high level which will continue to keep the property appealing. 

 

Locating the storage of vehicles exceeding 8,000 pounds in the front yard will require an exception to the PUD. Staff 

is recommending the Commission approve this exception as part of the Substantial Deviation. 

 

Open Item #2: Discuss different potential parking locations for 12-15 person buses and vans. 

 

Open Item #3: Discuss any potential screening options and adequacy of previously approved Landscape Plan. 

 

Open Item #4: Discuss open storage of vehicles in the front yard as an exception to the PUD. 

 

 

 
Above: 2009 Approved Site and Landscape Plan 

 

 

 

 



CTF Illinois – 6800-6820 Centennial Dr. 

 

Page 5 of 7 

Parking 

 

Village parking regulations provides little guidance for this unique use.  Office uses are based on square footage at a 

ratio of 1 space per 250 SF of floor space. This results in a requirement of 80 spaces, however the overall site 

parking is expected to be adequate based on the number of employees and anticipated visitor count. There are 

currently 86 parking spaces, which will be reduced by 12 spaces due to the proposed bus and van storage. The 

results in 74 available spaces. Staff is expected to be a maximum of 40 at this location, resulting in approximately 34 

available spaces for additional visitors and guests. While CTF has had some parking issues at their current Prosperi 

Drive location, that site is twice as large as the proposed location and has a very limited parking field (approximately 

53 spaces). This new location is expected to better meet their needs in regards to parking and building function. 

 

Open Item #5: Discuss proposed parking supply and reduction in available spaces from 86 to 74 due to vehicle 

storage. 

 

Signage 

 

No signage has been proposed by the petitioner yet. However, any signage is expected to comply with the current 

zoning code requirements and will be reviewed for conformance during permitting.  

 

 

 

Staff identified the following open items for discussion at the workshop: 

 

1. Discuss the Special Use Permit for a Substantial Deviation from the PUD to permit open storage of vehicles 

over 8,000 lbs.  

2. Discuss different potential parking locations for 12-15 person buses and vans. 

3. Discuss any potential screening options and adequacy of previously approved Landscape Plan. 

4. Discuss open storage of vehicles in the front yard as an exception to the PUD. 

5. Discuss proposed parking supply and reduction in available spaces from 86 to 74 due to vehicle storage. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CTF Illinois – 6800-6820 Centennial Dr. 

 

Page 6 of 7 

 

Section X.J.5. of the Zoning Ordinance lists standards that need to be considered by the Plan Commission. The Plan 

Commission is encouraged to consider these standards (listed below) when analyzing a Special Use request. Staff 

will provide draft Findings in the Staff Report for the Public Hearing. 

 

X.J.5. Standards: No Special Use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission unless said Commission shall find: 

 

a. That the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the Special Use will not be detrimental to or 

endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare; 

 

b. That the Special Use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 

vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within 

the neighborhood; 

 

c. That the establishment of the Special Use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 

improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in the district; 

 

d. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage, and/or other necessary facilities have been or are being 

provided; 

 

e. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to 

minimize traffic congestion in the public streets; and 

 

f. That the Special Use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in 

which it is located, except as such regulations may in each instance be modified by the Village Board 

pursuant to the recommendation of the Plan Commission.  The Village Board shall impose such 

conditions and restrictions upon the premises benefited by a Special Use Permit as may be necessary to 

ensure compliance with the above standards, to reduce or minimize the effect of such permit upon 

other properties in the neighborhood, and to better carry out the general intent of this Ordinance.  

Failure to comply with such conditions or restrictions shall constitute a violation of this Ordinance. 

 

g. The extent to which the Special Use contributes directly or indirectly to the economic development of 

the community as a whole. 

 

It is also important to recognize that a Special Use Permit does not run with the land and instead the Special Use 

Permit is tied to the Petitioner. This is different from a process such as a variance, since a variance will forever apply 

to the property to which it is granted. Staff encourages the Plan Commission to refer to Section X.J.6. to examine the 

conditions where a Special Use Permit will expire. 

 



CTF Illinois – 6800-6820 Centennial Dr. 

 

Page 7 of 7 

 

Following a successful workshop, proceed to a Public Hearing at the February 21, 2019 Plan Commission meeting. 

 
 

 

 

Submitted Sheet Name 
Prepared 

By 

Date On 

Sheet 

Parking Options and Drop-off Pattern CTF Illinois n/a 

Site Plan Narrative CTF Illinois n/a 

 







 

 

 

SITE PLAN ADDENDUM NARRATIVE 

 

 

Property:   6800-6820 Centennial Drive 

Purchaser:  Community Services Foundation 

Lessee:   CTF ILLINOIS 

Proposed Use:   Day Training Programing for Adults with Intellectual Disabilities 

Hours of Operation: 6:30 am - 5:00 pm 

Hours of Supports:   7:30 am - 3:00 pm 

 

History 

Community Service Foundation (Foundation) has been rooted in the Tinley Park community since the 
early 80’s when Southwest Community Services opened its doors on Duvan Drive.  In 2001, we moved 
our program space to Prosperi Drive where we remain to occupy today and in 2014 became an Oak Park 
vendor when we opened the Painted Turtle. The Foundation has been and continues to be a proud 
member of the Tinley Park Chamber of Commerce. 

Recently, the Foundation received an offer to sell its Prosperi building and hence began our search to 
occupy new space.  We are leaving a 40,000 square foot building in order to provide enhancements to 
our supports and therefore our search to locate smaller building ensued. 

Proposed Use 

The Foundation is currently perusing the above property to become a day training support for our adult 
with high physical and sensory needs.  Once fully occupied, each building will have approximately 40 
individuals and 15 staff. 

Most of the individuals will be transported by their residential facility or PACE, however, the individuals 
that live with family members will be transported by the CTF ILLINOIS transportation system.  Our 
current fleet is 8 vehicles that will require overnight parking. 

The 6820 Centennial Drive Building currently has two tenants.  Once their lease is expired, CTF will be 
the sole lessee. 























February 7, 2019 

 
Anytime Fitness 

17823 80th Avenue 

  

 

 
 

 
The petitioner, Derek Tucker of Anytime Fitness, is seeking a Special Use Permit for a 

Fitness Center (Commercial Indoor Recreation) location that is greater than 3,500 square 

feet in floor space. The Anytime Fitness location would be located at 17823 80th Avenue in 

The Junction at 80th Ave Shopping Center in the B-1 (Neighborhood Shopping) Zoning 

District. The proposed Special Use Permit will allow the previous Sanfrantello’s Pizza & 

Banquet space to be converted to a fitness and health club. 

 

Anytime Fitness is a chain of fitness centers that focus on availability to members 24 

hours a day, 365 days a year. Currently, there are over 2,700 Anytime Fitness locations 

including nearby locations in Oak Forest, Frankfort, and Orland Park. This location will be 

approximately 6,000 square feet in size. There will be various workout equipment and 

additional services such as group classes, personal training, tanning, and hydro-massage. 

The center is open 24 hours a day for members with key card access. There are many 

safety and security measures Anytime Fitness puts in place at all locations to make sure 

members feel safe at all times including emergency panic buttons and security cameras. 

 

The primary concern with fitness centers and other commercial indoor recreational uses 

is a potential for high levels of traffic and parking due to heavy peak times and quick 

customer turnover (less than 1 hour), particularly in locations with multiple commercial 

tenants. The proposed location appears to have an adequate parking supply and traffic 

access based upon the projected peak parking demand. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Petitioner 

Derek Tucker,  

Anytime Fitness 

 

Property Location 

17823 80th Avenue 

 

PIN 

27-36-121-031-0000 

 

Zoning 

B-1, Neighborhood 

Shopping 

 

Urban Overlay District 

 

Approvals Sought 

Special Use Permit 

 

 

 

 

 

Project Planner 

Daniel Ritter, AICP 

Senior Planner 
 



Anytime Fitness – 17823 80th Ave 

 

Page 2 of 6 

 
The tenant space is located within The 

Junction at 80th Avenue Shopping center 

which includes approximately 25,000 square 

feet of commercial space and is located just 

north of the 80th Avenue train station. The 

shopping center was approved in 1997 and 

constructed in 1998. The architecture, site 

layout and high-quality materials used 

throughout the center were required to 

complement the location near the train 

station. The center currently includes many 

tenants including a Chinese restaurant, travel 

agent, cleaners, dentist, salon, physical 

therapist and an accountant service. 

Additionally, there is a bank out lot (currently 

CIBC) on the southwest corner of the site. 

The bank and shopping center have an 

existing cross parking agreement that was 

required during the initial development 

approvals. The proposed Anytime Fitness 

tenant space was previously Sanfrantello’s 

Pizza, a casual Italian restaurant and banquet 

facility, which opened in 2001 and closed in 

2015. The approximately 6,000 square foot 

tenant space is the largest tenant space in 

the shopping center. Four other tenant 

spaces are currently vacant (including both 

end-cap spaces). 
 

 

The shopping center is zoned B-1 Neighborhood 

Shopping. The B-1 zoning district only permits low 

intensity uses so that traffic generation and other 

negative effects on surrounding residential areas 

are limited. The shopping center is located within 

the Urban Design Overlay district, but was 

developed before its adoption into the zoning 

code. The Urban Design Overlay’s intends to 

promote development that is walkable, utilizes 

alternative forms of transportation and limits the 

undesirable effects of automobiles. 
 

The surrounding area includes single-family homes 

zoned R-3 (Single-Family Residential) to the west 

across 80th Avenue. To the south is the Tinley Park 

80th Avenue Metra Station parking lot zoned ORI 

(Office and Restricted Industrial). To the east are 

single-family attached townhomes zoned R-5 PD 

(Low-Density Residential, Bristol Park PUD). 

 

 

B-1 R-3 
R-5 PD 

R-2 PD 

ORI 



Anytime Fitness – 17823 80th Ave 

 

Page 3 of 6 

 
Anytime Fitness is a fitness and health club use that is covered under the Commercial Indoor Recreation use group. 

In addition to fitness and health clubs, commercial indoor recreation includes uses such as racquetball, baseball 

cages, trampoline parks, dance/yoga studios, bowling, miniature golf and more.  The use group is further separated 

based on a business’s floor space being above and below 3,500 square feet. While there is nothing specific about 

the 3,500 square foot number, a limit was included because concerns tend to emerge when a recreation space 

becomes too large. There are generally fewer concerns for smaller spaces such as personal training or a small group 

dance studio. The primary concern is in regards to the number of customers that can utilize the indoor recreation 

space and its effects on parking demand and traffic generation. Depending on the specifics of the business, there is 

the possibility for very high peak parking demand and large traffic flows in and out of the site due to the quick 

turnover (typically 30mins - 1hr). This means hours of operation, parking supply, curb access, and site layout can all 

play a significant role in the acceptability of a use in a Neighborhood Shopping district. Other concerns can include 

general safety, security, noise generation and compliance with building and fire code requirements. 

 

Commercial Indoor Recreation above 3,500 square feet is a Special Use in the B-1 (Neighborhood Shopping) and B-2 

(Community Shopping) zoning districts. The use would be permitted in B-3 zoning district because those properties 

have typically been designed with heavy vehicle traffic in mind. B-1 (Neighborhood Shopping) districts are typically 

more neighborhood and pedestrian-oriented with smaller parking fields, limited access points, and “non-

objectionable” businesses. Commercial Indoor Recreation uses are permitted in any business district if the business 

is below 3,500 square feet in size. 

 

USE Zoning District 

B-1 

(Neighborhood) 

B-2 

(Community) 

B-3 

(General) 

B-4 

(Office/ 

Service) 

B-5 

(Auto) 

ORI M-1 MU-1 

(Duvan) 

Recreation, 

commercial 

indoor (< 3,500 

square feet) 

P P P P P X X P 

Recreation, 

commercial 

indoor (> 3,500 

square feet) 

S S P P P X X P 

Key: S = Special Use, P = Permitted Use, X = Prohibited Use 

Table from Section V-B-Schedule I (Schedule of Permitted Uses) of the Zoning Code. 

 

Open Item #1: Discuss Petitioner’s request for a Special Use Permit for a 6,008 square foot fitness/health club 

(Commercial Indoor Recreation). 

 
Anytime Fitness will be taking approximately 6,000 square feet of floor space. However, compared to similar fitness 

locations such as LA Fitness or Planet Fitness, Anytime Fitness is expected to have a more intimate and smaller club 

feel. Additional services at the club include small group sessions, personal training, tanning and hydro-therapy. 

Anytime Fitness is open 24 hours a day, so they also tend to have many customers that might have odd work 

schedules. This location is expected to draw from a wide range of customers in the area including interest from 

Metra commuters who want to work out before or after work. The business model is described further in the 

attached submittals provided by the petitioner. 

 



Anytime Fitness – 17823 80th Ave 

 

Page 4 of 6 

 

No changes to the exterior of the building architecture, site layout, lighting or landscaping are proposed with the 

new business and are all existing. There are some existing property maintenance issues in the shopping center; 

these are being addressed with the property owner and include: peeling paint, broken garbage cans, broken light 

fixtures, and missing landscaping. Code Enforcement will be reaching out to the owner to address these violations 

as soon as possible. 
 

The petitioner has not supplied any proposed exterior signage. It is expected that any wall signs and ground sign 

panel changes will meet the Zoning Code requirements, similar to the shopping center’s existing businesses. 

 

Open Item #2: Supply proposed signage information. If no signage is proposed, all signs will need to conform to 

the existing Zoning Code requirements. 
 

 

The petitioner has supplied a parking summary completed by Matt Gaunt, PE of SE3 Engineering. The shopping 

center includes a field of 157 parking spaces (not including CIBS parking lot). Due to the layout of the shopping 

center, the parking field is not evenly dispersed among tenants, with the majority of the parking located on the 

north side of the site. There is also some parking in the rear of the property, primarily for the business’s employees. 

The site currently has an observed peak parking of 28 spaces during evening hours (5pm - 7pm), although it should 

be noted that five tenant’s spaces including the Anytime Fitness space are currently vacant. Based on the proposed 

size, Anytime Fitness has been allotted 29 parking spaces per their lease with the landlord. 

 

The expected peak parking demand for Anytime Fitness is based off a similar location in Oak Forest (slightly larger 

in size at 6,900 square feet). The expected customer information was based on how many members swiped into the 

Oak Forest facility during their peak times between 5pm and 7pm. The peak demand is expected to be 17 vehicles 

based upon 15 members/customers and two employees. The number of vehicles could be less because members 

often drive together or take alternative forms of transportation (walk, bike, dropped off or ride-sharing services are 

some examples). However, to create a conservative estimate, it is being assumed that each person is driving to the 

business in a separate vehicle. There are slight morning rushes, however these are typically less than the evening 

rush and the majority of the shopping center’s businesses are not open yet. 

 

With the addition of Anytime Fitness, the shopping center’s peak parking estimate is expected to be 45 vehicles (28 

existing + 17 additional) out of the available 157 parking spaces. When projecting typical parking demand of 5-7 

parking spaces per 1,000 square feet of commercial space for the four vacant spaces (approximately 9,700 square 

feet), there is still expected to be an excess of parking spaces. Previously when Sanfrantellos Pizza operated, parking 

was be tight due to heavy traffic form their banquet business. However, Anytime Fitness is expected to have a much 

lower peak parking demand than a large restaurant and banquet facility. 

 

In addition to the shopping center parking field, there is an existing cross-parking easement between the shopping 

center and the bank properties. The bank closes at 5pm on most days which allows for addition parking if there was 

any overflow in the future. Cross-parking easements were a requirement of the original Plat of Subdivision and Site 

Plan approvals to ensure there was enough available parking during evening hours and because of the lack of 

convenient parking adjacent to the south side of the shopping center building. 

 

Open Item #3: Review and discuss parking supply and demand as indicated in the parking analysis.  

 

 

 

 

 



Anytime Fitness – 17823 80th Ave 

 

Page 5 of 6 

 

Staff identified the following open items for discussion at the workshop: 

 

1. Discuss Petitioner’s request for a Special Use Permit for a 6,008 square foot fitness/health club (Commercial 

Indoor Recreation). 

2. Supply proposed signage information. If no signage is proposed, all signs will need to conform to the 

existing Zoning Code requirements 

3. Review and discuss parking supply and demand as indicated in the parking analysis. 

 

 

Section X.J.5. of the Zoning Ordinance lists standards that need to be considered by the Plan Commission. The Plan 

Commission is encouraged to consider these standards (listed below) when analyzing a Special Use request. Staff 

will provide draft Findings in the Staff Report for the Public Hearing. 

 

X.J.5. Standards: No Special Use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission unless said Commission shall find: 

 

a. That the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the Special Use will not be detrimental to or 

endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare; 

 

b. That the Special Use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 

vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within 

the neighborhood; 

 

c. That the establishment of the Special Use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 

improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in the district; 

 

d. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage, and/or other necessary facilities have been or are being 

provided; 

 

e. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to 

minimize traffic congestion in the public streets; and 

 

f. That the Special Use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in 

which it is located, except as such regulations may in each instance be modified by the Village Board 

pursuant to the recommendation of the Plan Commission.  The Village Board shall impose such 

conditions and restrictions upon the premises benefited by a Special Use Permit as may be necessary to 

ensure compliance with the above standards, to reduce or minimize the effect of such permit upon 

other properties in the neighborhood, and to better carry out the general intent of this Ordinance.  

Failure to comply with such conditions or restrictions shall constitute a violation of this Ordinance. 

 

g. The extent to which the Special Use contributes directly or indirectly to the economic development of 

the community as a whole. 

 

It is also important to recognize that a Special Use Permit does not run with the land and instead the Special Use 

Permit is tied to the Petitioner. This is different from a process such as a variance, since a variance will forever apply 

to the property to which it is granted. Staff encourages the Plan Commission to refer to Section X.J.6. to examine the 

conditions where a Special Use Permit will expire. 

 



Anytime Fitness – 17823 80th Ave 

 

Page 6 of 6 

 

Following a successful workshop, proceed to a Public Hearing at the February 21, 2019 Plan Commission meeting. 

 

 

Submitted Sheet Name Prepared By 
Date On 

Sheet 

Existing Land Survey Tech 3 Consulting 10-15-97 

Existing Site Plan and Parking Layout Tech 3 Consulting 8-27-98 

Existing Shopping Center Layout Unknown Unknown 

Internal Floor Plan (Compliance Drawing) Wilkus Architects 12-13-18 

Anytime Fitness Parking Study (Tinley Park) SE3 Engineers 1-28-19 

Anytime Fitness Brochure (Lets Make Happy Healthy) Anytime Fitness 2019 

Anytime Fitness Brochure (Overview) Anytime Fitness 2014 

 

















CUBBIES

BENCH

CUBBIES

SOFFIT

R
ETA

IL

LO
G
O
 W

ALL

S
T-1

103' - 4 1/2" VIF

IN
S

P
IR

A
T

IO
N

 W
A

L
L

P
D

E
-1

/P
L
-1

3

H
O

L
D

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

MANIFESTO WALL
PL-12

7'-0" x 7'-0"  CLEAR 
FLOOR SPACE -
NO EQUIPMENT 

ALLOWED

7' - 0"

C
L

E
A

R
4

' 
- 

0
" 

M
IN

4
' 
- 

0
"

4' - 0"

T-1

HALL

T-2

RESTROOM SC

STORAGE /
UTILITY

VP-1

MULTI-PURPOSE
ROOM

415 SF

RF-1

FREE
WEIGHTS

1097 SF

TURF

FUNCTIONAL
TRAINING

720 SF

CA-1

TRAINER

CA-1

OFFICE

T-1

MEMBER
LOBBY

T-1

GUEST LOBBY

CA-1

CARDIO

CA-1

STRENGTH
TRAINING

T-1

TANNING

T-1

HYDRO
MASSAGE

T-1

VESTIBULE

T-1

HYDRO
MASSAGE

T-1

TANNING

T-2

RESTROOM
T-2

RESTROOM

ST-1 WRAPS ENDS OF WALL -
REFER TO DESIGN MANUAL

REQUIRED PRE-MANUFACTURED 
SOFFIT - REFER TO DESIGN MANUAL 
DETAIL & INTERIOR SIGNAGE 
PROGRAM - PRE-FINISHED

'AFIT NATION' 
GRAPHIC REQUIRED 
- REFER TO 
INTERIOR SIGNAGE 
PROGRAM

VERIFY THAT REQUIRED 
SECOND EMERGENCY EXIT 
DOOR COMPLIES WITH ALL 
STATE AND LOCAL CODES

20' - 10" 9' - 5" 5' - 1 3/4" 3' - 3 1/2" 4' - 1 1/4" 12' - 11" 8' - 1 1/2" 6' - 10" 10' - 2 1/2"

9
' 
- 

5
"

9
' 
- 

2
 1

/2
" 3
' 
- 

2
 1

/2
"

6
' 
- 

0
"

6
' 
- 

0
"

3
' 
- 

5
"

1
6

' 
- 

8
 1

/4
"

8
' 
- 

5
"

1
0

' 
- 

5
"

1
0

' 
- 

5
"

1
2

' 
- 

5
 1

/2
"

9' - 6 3/4" 9' - 2"

2
0

' 
- 

0
"

36' - 0"

3
8

' 
- 

5
"

36' - 0"

2
0

' 
- 

3
 1

/2
"

VERIFY LOCATION OF 
EXISTING ELECTRICAL 
PANEL

VERIFY LOCATION OF 
EXISTING STOREFRONT

AFLP COMMUNICATION KIT WITH RECESSED TIMER 
OUTLET MUST BE LOCATED ON THIS WALL, WITHIN 
TURF AREA.  COORDINATE WITH ANY FUNCTIONAL 
TRAINING EQUIPMENT AND/OR STORAGE RACKS.  
MUST BE VISIBLE TO MAIN AREA OF TURF. 
- IF OPENING WITHOUT AFLP, OWNER MUST INSTALL 
THE OUTLET AND LEAVE THE WALL SPACE OPEN. 

5
8

' 
- 

5
" 

V
IF

7
' 
- 

0
"

8'
 - 

0"

H
O

L
D

6
' 
- 

0
"

HOLD
5' - 0"

10' - 6"

10' - 2 1/2"

2
' 
- 

9
 1

/4
"

3' - 6"

1
' 
- 

7
"

3
' 
- 

1
1

"

2
0

'-
0

" 
M

A
X

 

1
8

' 
- 

9
 3

/4
"

0 3 6 9 12 15

SHOWER FINISHES:
WALLS: T-3
FLOOR: T-4

RESTROOM FINISHES:
TOILET WALL: T-3/PG-5
ALL OTHERS: T-3/PG-1

V
.T

.K
. 

S
C

R
E

E
N

 T
H

IS
 W

A
L

L
PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

P
G

-1

P
G

-1

P
G

-1
P

G
-1

PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

P
G

-1

P
G

-1

P
G

-1

P
G

-1
P

G
-1

P
G

-1

PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

P
G

-1

P
G

-1

P
G
-1

PG
-3

P
G

-3

PG-2PG-2
PG-2PG-2 PG-2

PG-2

P
G

-3

P
G

-4

PG-4

P
G

-4
P

G
-4

P
G

-4
P

G
-4

P
G

-4
P

G
-4

P
G

-4
P

G
-4

PG-1

PG-1

PG-5

P
G

-5

P
G

-5

P
G

-4
P

G
-3

PG-1

PG-3

PG-3PG-3

PG-3PG-3

P
G

-3 PG-2

PG-2

PG-2

PG-2

P
G

-2

P
G

-2

PG-2

P
G

-3

PG-1

PG-5

P
G

-5

PROVIDE FURRING AROUND 
EXISTING SURFACE MOUNTED 
ELECTRICAL PANEL AS NEEDED, 
VERIFY IN FIELD

EXISTING WALL

9
"

3 5/8" METAL 
STUDS WRAP 
W/ 5/8" GYP. BD.

PG-3

PG-3

P
G

-3

NEW

EXISTING BACKGROUND, 
INCLUDING DIMENSIONS, ARE 
PROVIDED BY THE 
FRANCHISEE - VERIFY ALL 
DIMENSIONS IN FIELD AND 
NOTIFY ARCHITECT OF ANY 
DISCREPANCIES PRIOR TO 
START OF ANY 
CONSTRUCTION.

BRAND MATTERS!  This 
document was created to ensure 
each club within the Anytime 
Fitness family embodies the spirit 
of the brand.  The information 
provided conveys the aesthetics as 
well as the functionality of the club, 
including, but not limited to: 
materials, finishes, design 
elements and layout.
This document is not to be used 
for construction.  A qualified 
design professional(s) should be 
engaged to prepare detailed 
construction documents and 
ensure compliance with all 
applicable codes and regulations.

REV: DATE:DESCRIPTION:PROJECT LOCATION:

DESIGN MANUAL - OCTOBER 2018

COMPLIANCE 
DRAWING 

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

FLOOR PLAN

PROJECT NO:

FINISH FLOOR KEY:

RF-1

CA-1

OTHER 
FLOORING AS 
NOTED

CA = Carpet Floor
T = Porcelain Tile
VCT = Vinyl Composite Tile
RF = Rubber Floor
VP = Vinyl Plank Floor
WF = Wood Floor
SC = Sealed Concrete Floor
STC = Stained Concrete Floor
P-# = Paint
WC = Wallcovering
ST = Manufactured Stone
TURF = ECORE Turf
X = Existing Flooring

The color of the paint for each 
wall is identified by a paint code 
(PL-5, PG-2, etc.).  The 
corresponding paint color is 
specified in the design manual.

A

E

Square Footage shown is a graphic representation based on the data 
received and may vary from the square footage as defined in the lease

DESIGN SCHEME:

PAINT:

DRAWING KEY:

REFER TO DESIGN MANUAL 
FOR ABBREVIATIONS:

DISCLAIMER:

= Existing Wall

= New Wall

= Demo Wall

= Existing Door

= Existing Door close 
off, Remove Hardware 
and Exit Sign

= New Door

= Demo Door

= Floor Transition

= Wall Protection 
               (Required)

2018-12-13Compliance Layout-TINLEY PARK, IL AF#3492  6,200SF

GALLERY

2018-1158



Memorandum

January 28, 2019

TO: Derek Tucker

FROM: Matt Gauntt, PE

SUBJECT: Anytime Fitness, Tinley Park, IL
Parking Study

Anytime fitness proposes to build out a facility in an existing shopping center at the northeast
corner of 179th Street and S. 80th Avenue in the Village of Tinley Park.  This memo is to outline
the parking conditions.  See the aerial map shown below.

The shopping center is partially occupied with a variety of businesses.  They include:

Tenant Use Approximate Size Hours
Athletico Physical Therapy 4,660 SF M-Th: 7-8PM

F: 7-6:30
Sat: 7-noon

Array of Design Salon
Day Spa

Day Spa 1,200 SF M: Closed
T:  10-8
W: 10-9



Memorandum
Tenant Use Approximate Size Hours

Th: 9-9
F: 9-6
Sat: 9-3

DS Services Accountants 3,009 SF By Appointment
GO Travel Travel Agency 884 SF M-F: 9-5

Sat: 9-12
Chen’s Chinese Restaurant 2,013 SF M-Th: 11-9

F-Sun: 11-10
Cambridge Dental
Care

Dentist 1,818 SF M: 12-8
T: 9-5
W: 11-6
Th: 9-5
F: 8-12

Anytime Fitness proposes to take 6,008 SF of the shopping center.  Per the landlord, they are
granted a parking count of 5:1, or 29 parking spaces.

Currently there are 157 parking spaces in the center.  This does not include the CIBC Banking
Center.  With 29,319 SF for the center, that is a parking ratio of approximately 5.35:1

A parking survey was conducted on the site for two PM Peak periods and one AM Peak.  Both
the AM and the PM counts looked at the time from of 5:00 – 7:00.  The total vehicles parked
the parking lot at each time interval are shown below.

Time Frame (AM/PM) 1/17/19 – PM Peak 1/22/19 – AM Peak 1/22/19 – PM Peak
5:00 28 0 18
5:15 24 0 18
5:30 20 2 22
5:45 22 3 19
6:00 22 3 16
6:15 20 4 15
6:30 20 4 14
6:45 18 6 12
7:00 16 7 13

With the current tenants, at most 1/5th of the available parking is being utilized.

Proposed Conditions:

As stated above, Anytime Fitness proposes to occupy approximately 6,008 SF of the shopping
center.  In order to understand the impact of the proposed facility on the parking, we obtained



Memorandum
member key-swipe data from the existing Oak Forest facility.  Oak Forest is approximately 6,900
SF, so a slightly larger facility than is being proposed at Tinley Park.

Club at a Glance - ANYTIME FITNESS OAK FOREST
Usage (Average per Hour)

What the data represents is that for instance, from 6:00 -7:00 PM, 15 patrons would come into
the facility.  The average stay time for a patron would be between 30-60 minutes.  Therefore,
we would expect that at any one time, 15 would be the average maximum number of patrons
in the facility.  In addition to the patrons, there would be 2 employees.

Furthermore, the key swipes may be slightly elevated.  If a patron comes into the facility, leaves
to get something in their car and then returns, then that would count as two key swipes.

It is also important to note that the peak times for the facility would be offset by peak times for
other shopping center uses.  For instance, Friday nights and Saturday nights would be a low
usage time for the Anytime Fitness, but that would be a peak time for a restaurant.  Thus, the
peaks will offset.

Given that the facility would occupy only about half of the allotted parking, we believe that
there will be no negative impact to the available parking at the shopping center.



EDGEMARK COMMERCIAL  
REAL ESTATE SERVICES LLC
2215 York Road, Suite 503
Oak Brook, Illinois 60523
P 630.472.1010 F 630.472.1019
www.edgemarkllc.com

FOR MORE 
INFORMATION 

CONTACT:

SPACE FOR LEASE
THE JUNCTION 

NEC 80th Avenue & 179th Street
Tinley Park, Illinois

Matt Smetana
630.572.5632
msmetana@edgemarkllc.com

Ves Pavlovic
630.572.5607
vpavlovic@edgemarkllc.com

SPACE AVAILABLE FOR LEASE

1,390 Sq Ft | 1,569 Sq Ft | 3,443 Sq Ft

TOTAL GLA

29,319 Sq Ft

PROPERTY HIGHLIGHTS

• Endcap available with potential drive-thru.

• Located at NEC of 80th Ave & 179th St.

• Conveniently located within walking distance                
to the Tinley Park Metra Station.

• Move-in ready office space available. 

• Traffic Counts on 80th Avenue are 21,000 VPD.

• Positioned strategically near high density 
residential and industrial/office parks.

DEMOGRAPHICS

POPULATION HOUSEHOLDS
AVG HH
INCOME

1 Mile 8,427 3,001 $122,396

3 Mile 79,601 30,511 $103,266

5 Mile 190,112 71,948 $107,007

AREA ATTRACTIONS

Whitewater Canyon Water Park & Recreation Center

Tinley Park Convention Center, First Midwest Bank Amphitheatre.

http://www.edgemarkllc.com
mailto:msmetana@edgemarkllc.com
mailto:vpavlovic@edgemarkllc.com


The information contained herein has either been given to us by the owner of the property or obtained from sources that we deem reliable.  We have no reason to doubt its accuracy but we do not guarantee it.

FOR MORE 
INFORMATION 

CONTACT:

The Junction 
Tinley Park, Illinois

Matt Smetana
630.572.5632
msmetana@edgemarkllc.com

Ves Pavlovic
630.572.5607
vpavlovic@edgemarkllc.com

SPACE SQ FT TENANT SPACE SQ FT TENANT

17823 3,325 LEASE OUT 17849 884 Go Travel

17825 6,008 Anytime Fitness 17851 1,390 AVAILABLE

17833 1,569 AVAILABLE 17853 1,818 Cambridge Dental Care

17835 1,200 Array of Design Salon 17855 2,013 Chen’s Chinese Restaurant

17837 4,660 Athletico Sports Medicine 17859 3,443 AVAILABLE

17845 3,009 DS Services Total GLA 29,319 Sq Ft

mailto:msmetana@edgemarkllc.com
mailto:vpavlovic@edgemarkllc.com






























































February 07, 2019 

 
 
Text Amendment-Short Term Rental (STR) 

Zoning Code 

 

 
 

 
At the January 8, 2019 Community Development Committee meeting, staff presented 

research on how municipalities can regulate short-term rentals (STR). Specifically, staff 

discussed options of licensing, taxation and zoning requirements. A draft licensing ordinance 

was presented and was viewed favorably for recommendation to the Village Board.  The 

second step to regulating STRs is to amend the Zoning Code to define short-term rental and 

identify which zoning districts they may be permitted in. 

 

Staff is proposing a text amendment to the Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance. Section II.B 

(Definitions) and Section V.B. (Schedule of Regulations) for short-term rental uses. The 

purpose of this amendment is to add definitions and to modify the schedule of use 

regulations to permit short-term rentals in residential zoning districts and prohibit them in 

non-residential zoning districts.  

 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Petitioner 

Village Tinley Park 

 

Municipal Code 

Zoning Code 

 

Approvals Sought 

Text Amendment 

 

Project Planner 

Kimberly Clarke 

Planning Manager 
 



Text Amendment-Short Term Rental 

 

Page 2 of 4 

 

According to a recent presentation by a company (shareable.net) which has followed Airbnb since inception, the home 

share economy has evolved from a small cottage industry of “staying at a person’s place for a night” to 50-70% of 

listings are now whole unit rentals. “The home share market is now a $32 billion dollar industry with about 1/3 of 

Americans having stayed in a short-term rental” (APA Addressing the Growth in Short-Term Rentals). These home 

share companies now have a significant financial reason to get their way and fight back against any regulations that 

would hurt their bottom line.  

 

Airbnb was founded in 2008. Its website describes itself as a “trusted community marketplace for people to list, 

discover, and book unique accommodations around the world-online or from a mobile phone or tablet…Airbnb 

connects people to unique travel experiences, at any price point, in the more than 34,000 cities and 191 countries. 

And with world-class customer service and a growing community of users, Airbnb is the easiest way for people to 

monetize their extra space and showcase it to an audience of millions.” (https://www.airbnb.com/about/about-us). 

 

Airbnb is just one of several STR websites, but it is one of the more well-known sites. Proponents of short-term rental 

claim they allow ordinary citizens to earn extra money that helps them make mortgage payments or pay bills.  Airbnb 

claims that they bring visitors and money into the community, with Airbnb visitors staying longer and spending more 

money locally than traditional hotel guests do.  Opponents of STR focus on the absentee landlord that leverages the 

neighborhood for their personal profit while guests disrupt the neighborhood with parties, excessive parking, 

potential security risks and failure to pay their fair share of taxes. 

 

Home sharing has the potential to change the character of established residential areas, therefore, many 

communities are taking a closer look at how best to accommodate the demand for new types of lodging without 

undermining goals related to housing, land use, or transportation. There are three basic varieties of STRs: (1) hosted 

sharing, where the primary occupants of a residence remain on-site with guests; (2) unhosted sharing, where the 

primary occupants of a residence vacate the unit while it is rented to short-term guests; and (3) dedicated vacation 

rentals, where there are no primary occupants. Home sharing and vacation rental services can provide residents and 

landlords an easy way to make some extra income and, in some cases, offering residences exclusively as short-term 

rentals can be far more lucrative than traditional leases. Meanwhile, the properties marketed through home sharing 

and vacation rental sites often appeal to travelers looking for a more authentic local experience or affordable 

alternatives to downtown hotels and motels (APA PAS Report No. 56). 

 

 
In December of 2018, the Village received a complaint regarding a disturbance at a home that was being rented out 

for the weekend.  After speaking with a few of the residents in this neighborhood, it was discovered this was not the 

first time this property has created a nuisance due to the behavior and actions of the individuals renting the home 

for the weekend. Staff has identified seven STR units advertised for STR use in Tinley Park. Table 1  includes the results 

of staff’s research. It should be noted that the number of STRs may vary by season based on activities that are 

happening in the area. 

 
Table 1: Short-Term Rentals in Tinley Park, December 2018 

No. Rooms/House Reviews Cost Gust No. Zoning District Owner Occupied 

1 7 rooms 46 $60/night 2 R-3 yes 

2 2 rooms 18 $65/night 4 R-3 yes 

3 2 rooms 33 $75/night 4 R-6 not sure 

4 1 room 16 $49/night 3 R-2 not sure 

5* rooms or house 34 $399/night 8 R-2 no 

6 1 room 62 $70/night 2 R-1 yes 

7 house 0 $750/night 10 R-2 no 

https://www.airbnb.com/about/about-us


Text Amendment-Short Term Rental 

 

Page 3 of 4 

*Two documented complaints from neighbors have been received by the Village regarding traffic and noise from guests  

 renting the home. See exhibit A for photos. 

 

 
Currently the only permitted use in the Zoning Ordinance similar to Short Term Rentals is “Bed and Breakfast which 

is only permitted in the B-3 Zoning District. 

 
BED AND BREAKFAST: A Bed and Breakfast facility is a transient lodging establishment, generally in a single-family 

dwelling or detached guesthouses, primarily engaged in providing overnight or otherwise temporary lodging for 

the general public and may provide meals for compensation. 

 
In order to differentiate STR from a Bed and Breakfast, Staff recommends the following definition be added to Section 

II.B (Definitions): 

 

SHORT-TERM RENTAL: A dwelling unit that is used as a primary residence by owners or renters, or portion of such 

a unit, that is rented for less than 30 days at a time, with the exception of dwelling units owned by the federal 

government, the state, or any of their agencies or political subdivisions and facilities licensed by the state as health 

care facilities 

 
The Community Development Committee directed to staff was to limit STR to owner-occupied dwelling units. 

Therefore, to be considered a STR, a dwelling unit or portion of a dwelling unit, must be occupied by the owner. For 

example, a single-family homeowner who rents out a spare bedroom or other facilities within his/her own house 

meets the definition however the short term rental of an apartment by someone who does not live in it full-time will 

not fit the definition. The 30-day limit is intended to exclude relatively long-term rent contracts. For example, if 

someone rents out a second home to a businessman who will be working in the area for a year, that would not be 

considered a STR. 

 

 

Staff has researched regulatory best practices for STRs and provide the following recommendations for regulating 

STR property: 

 

 Only allow permanent residents to operate STRs and disallow rentals in subsidized housing 

 Set neighborhood quotas  

 Ban signs 

 Require adequate parking and garbage disposal 

 Require hosts to post noise regulations 

 Require a local contact person 

 Require physical safety and habitability inspections 

 
Many of the recommendations listed above can be regulated through a licensing program.  The zoning Ordinance can 

regulate location and minimum distances between STRs..  

 
Staff’s recommendation is to permit STRs in all residential zoning districts as an accessory use to a dwelling unit.  The 

STR use would be accessory to the principal use, similar to a home occupation or home daycare operation. One 

approach to ensuring that STRs do not become a dominant use in any one neighborhod is to regulate the distance 

between STRs or in the case of multi-family units, establish a maximum percentage of units in a building that can be 

used as STRs. In multi-family buildings typically there is are associations that may regulate STRs and therefore it may 



Text Amendment-Short Term Rental 

 

Page 4 of 4 

not be as much of a concern compared to a single-family subdivision. Limiting the number of STRs in proximity to 

another will reduce concern for an entire neighborhood’s character changing. 

 

Open Item #1:  Discuss permitting STRS in all residential zoning districts as an accessory use. 

 

Open Item #2: Discuss how to further regulate STRS by requiring a minimum distance from one another. In regards 

to multi-family units, discuss requiring a percentage how many would be allowed.

 

SCHEDULE I- SCHEDULE OF PERMITTED USE (BY USE TYPE) 

 R-1 R-2 R-3 R-4 R-5 R-6 R-7 B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 B-

5 

ORI M-1 MU-1 

Other Uses 

Short-Term 

Rental, 

accessory to a 

dwelling unit 

P P P P P P* P* X X X X X X X X 

                

 

 

Staff identified the following open items for discussion at the workshop: 

 

1. Discuss permitting STRS in all residential zoning districts as an accessory use. 

2. Discuss how to further regulate STRS by requiring a minimum distance from one another. In regards to multi-

family units, discuss requiring a percentage how many would be allowed. 

 

 

 

Following a successful workshop, proceed to a Public Hearing at the February 21, 2019 Plan Commission meeting. 

 
 

 



 

 
 
 
Date:  December 11, 2018 

To:   Community Development Committee 

From:  Kimberly Clarke, Planning Manager 

Subject:  Short Term Rentals   

 

 

Background: 

 

There have been recent events in the community that have given rise for the need to discuss short-

term rentals in the Village.  There is one home in particular that is causing disruption to the 

neighborhood. See Exhibit A for photos regarding this home that is rented on the Airbnb site. 

According to the neighbors, the owner of the property does not reside at the home and issues 

with traffic and noise from the guests have been going on for over a year. The Village’s attorney is 

drafting a letter to this property owner to cease and desist renting the home until further notice. 

Due to this complaint, staff has been requested to provide research to the Village Board on how 

communities have regulated short-term rentals. 

 

Short-Term Rentals 

 

Airbnb was founded in 2008. It’s website describes itself as a “trusted community marketplace for 

people to list, discover, and book unique accommodations around the world-online or from a 

mobile phone or tablet…Airbnb connects people to unique travel experiences, at any price point, 

in the more than 34,000 cities and 191 countries. And with world-class customer service and a 

growing community of users, Airbnb is the easiest way for people to monetize their extra space 

and showcase it to an audience of millions.” (https://www.airbnb.com/about/about-us). 

 

Airbnb is but one of several short-term rental websites but it is one of the more well-known sites. 

Proponents of short-term rental claim they allow ordinary citizens to earn extra money that helps 

them make mortgage payments or pay bills.  Airbnb claims that they bring visitors and money into 

the community, with Airbnb visitors staying longer and spending more money locally than 

traditional hotel guests do.  Opponents of short-term rental focus on the absentee landlord that 

leverages the neighborhood for their profit while guests disrupt the neighborhood with parties, 

excessive parking, potential security risks and fail to pay their fair share of taxes. 

 

Discussion: 

 

To facilitate the discussion, staff has provided recent articles on short-term rentals and examples 

of ordinances passed by other communities. The definition of short-term rental can be defined 

differently amongst municipalities but the general concept is “the renting of any dwelling or portion 

  

Memo 

https://www.airbnb.com/about/about-us


 

thereof for overnight or vacation lodging for a period of less than 30 days”.  An ever-increasing number 

of communities across the country are examining this issue and adopting ordinances addressing 

short-term rentals.  There are multiple ways to regulate this use such as establish licensing, 

permitting, or taxation requirements, as well as operational or procedural standards to protect 

safety and mitigate potential nuisances. No clear regulatory response to short-term rentals has 

emerged in the region and ultimately each municipality has their own unique view on the use. 

 

Short-Term Rentals in Tinley Park 

 

The Village of Tinley Park regulates “bed and breakfast”.  Staff has interpreted the use to be similar 

to the definition of a bed and breakfast use which is a only permitted in the B-3 Zoning District. 

 
BED AND BREAKFAST: A Bed and Breakfast facility is a transient lodging establishment, 
generally in a single-family dwelling or detached guesthouses, primarily engaged in providing 
overnight or otherwise temporary lodging for the general public and may provide meals for  
compensation. 

 

Using various sources, staff identified seven short-term rental units in Tinley Park. Table 1 below 

includes the results of staff’s research. 

 

Table 1: Short-Term Rentals in Tinley Park, December 2018 

No. Rooms/House Reviews Cost Gust No. Zoning District Owner Occupied 

1 7 rooms 46 $60/night 2 R-3 yes 

2 2 rooms 18 $65/night 4 R-3 yes 

3 2 rooms 33 $75/night 4 R-6 not sure 

4 1 room 16 $49/night 3 R-2 not sure 

5* rooms or 

house 

34 $399/night 8 R-2 no 

6 1 room 62 $70/night 2 R-1 yes 

7 house 0 $750/night 10 R-2 no 

*Two documented complaints from neighbors have been received by the Village regarding traffic and 

 noise from guests  renting the home. See exhibit A for photos. 

 

Ways to Regulate 

 

Licensing. Require short-term rentals to be licensed. This would allow the Village to track and  

collect fees to operate the program but also improve enforcement of zoning, city codes, and 

reporting.  The Zoning Ordinance will also need to be amended to specify the use and identify 

the appropriate districts they would be allowed in. Licensing can be very strict such as only allowing 

a property to rent one time a year or it can be a license to rent any number of times for the entire 

year.   

 

Zoning. Renting out rooms in a residential zone essentially allows commercial uses in an area 

that prohibits that type of use. Similar to why you don’t want a neighbor running an automotive 

shop out of their garage, residential neighborhoods need to be protected from the potential 



 

impacts of short-term rentals. The Village may want to consider limiting which zoning districts  

short-term rentals can be permitted to protect traditional single family detached neighborhoods. 

 

Fees. The reason short-term rentals are so much less expensive than traditional hotels is 

because they are not subject to the same city fees and taxes.  Some communities such as 

Schaumburg and Oak Park are applying the same hotel tax charged to traditional hotels to short- 

term rentals. Collecting this tax can be cumbersome and it may require the Village to enter into 

 an agreement with Airbnb. 

 

Staff has summarized regulations from other communities on short-term rentals in Table 2  

below. 

 

Table 2: Communities regulating short-term rentals 

 

Staff is further researching how a tax can be collected if there is no specific agreement with 

Airbnb to do so.  

 

Request: 

 

Staff is looking for direction from the Village Board on how they wish to regulate Short-term  

rentals in the Village. 

 

 

Municipality Population 

(2010 

census) 

Ordinance re: Short-term 

rentals 

Crime Free Housing Program 

(rentals licensed/registered) 

Oak Park 51,878 YES Agreement with Airbnb : 

4% tax of the gross rental 

receipts 

NO (B&B’s get business license) 

Schaumburg 74,227 YES  8% tax of the gross rental 

receipts 

YES 

New Lenox 24,394 NO NO 

Lockport 24,839 NO NO 

Frankfort 17,782 NO NO 

Naperville 141,853 YES  5.50% tax NO 

Rockford 152,871 YES 5%  tax  YES 

Joliet 147,433 NO YES 

Evanston 74,486 YES “Vacation Rental 

Ordinance” 

YES 

Oak Lawn 56,690 YES- License required Yes 

Chicago 2,695,598 YES License and annual fee. 

Limits number of units to be 

rented on short-term basis in 

multi-family buildings 

Not sure 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 

 

 

Complaint received 7.29.18 from 

neighbors of this short-term rental. 

  

 

2nd complaint received 12.3.18 from 

neighbors regarding traffic and noise 

from this short-term rental from the 

same house as the photo above. 



 

 

Same house as above from 12.3.18. 

Police were called regarding this 

complaint. 

 









































Prepared for:
Committee on Local Government 

Hon. Brian Maienschein, Chair

Assembly Revenue and Taxation Committee

Hon. Phil Ting, Chair 

Overview of Sharing Economy 
and Short-Term Rentals
L E G I S L A T I V E   A N A L Y S T ’ S   O F F I C E 

March 18, 2015

LAO
70  YEARS OF SERVICE



1L E G I S L A T I V E  A N A L Y S T ’ S  O F F I C E

March 18, 2015

LAO
70  YEARS OF SERVICE

   First Wave of Change

  Most of the Internet-driven societal and economic change 
between 1990 and early 2000s pertained to how people and 
organizations shared information and bought things. 

  Wave examples: Facebook, Amazon, Ebay, and email.

  Recent Wave of Change

  Beginning a decade ago, a new wave of change started 
called the “sharing economy” or “peer-to-peer” (P2P) market.

  This wave relies on the strengths of the Internet to allow 
consumers and suppliers to complete transactions easily.

  Wave examples: Airbnb, HomeAway, and FlipKey (lodging); 
Uber and Lyft (transportation); and Kickstarter, Prosper, and 
Lending Club  (fi nancial services).  

Internet Use Drives Societal and 
Economic Change

Percent of Population Using the Internet

 10

 20

 30

 40

 50

 60

 70

 80

 90%

United States

World

90 92 94 96 98 00 02 04 06 08 10 12



2L E G I S L A T I V E  A N A L Y S T ’ S  O F F I C E

March 18, 2015

LAO
70  YEARS OF SERVICE

  Key Characteristics. Renting goods and contracting for short 
term services is nothing new. In the past, however, some desired 
transactions did not occur due to information limits or other 
barriers. Sharing economy businesses use the strengths of the 
Internet so that:

  Consumers can quickly search among myriad suppliers, 
compare information and reviews on suppliers, and complete 
transactions effi ciently.

  Suppliers have wide access to consumers interested in using 
underutilized assets such as vacation homes and vehicles.  

  The focus shifts from ownership of physical and human 
assets (like time, space, and skills) to access to these assets. 

  Technological Change Frequently Triggers Public Policy 
Questions

  The fi rst wave of Internet changes prompted government to 
examine regulatory structures about data privacy and tax 
laws related to purchases of retail goods from businesses 
outside of California.

  Sharing economy changes are prompting policy debate 
in part because many of the affected businesses are in 
industries where government (1) has established a signifi cant 
regulatory framework, including land use, business, and 
consumer protection regulations, and/or (2) collects taxes, 
such as transient occupancy taxes and business license 
taxes, that pay for government programs.

 
A Look at the Sharing Economy



3L E G I S L A T I V E  A N A L Y S T ’ S  O F F I C E

March 18, 2015

LAO
70  YEARS OF SERVICE

  Many Visitors. Industry experts estimate California had 
about 230 million “person-trips” in 2013. About 80 percent of 
these trips were for leisure. 

  California Residents Accounted for About Three-
Quarters of These Trips. Residents of other states 
accounted for about one-fi fth of these trips and visitors from 
other countries accounted for about 7 percent. Travelers 
from Mexico and Canada accounted for more than half of the 
international trips.  

  Tourism Spending. Visitors are estimated to have spent 
over $110 billion in 2013. This includes spending for 
lodging, food services, recreation, transportation, and retail 
businesses. Foreign visitors accounted for about 20 percent 
of this spending. 

Lodging: Part of the Leisure and
Hospitality Industry

Share of Wages and Business Income by Major Industry
2013

Sector California United States

Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate 8.8% 9.2%
Government 17.4 17.1
Health Care and Social Assistance 9.5 10.9
Manufacturing 9.5 9.7
Professional and Technical Services 12.0 9.8
Wholesale and Retail Trade 10.5 11.0
Leisure and Hospitality 4.7 4.2
 Food service 2.4 2.4
 Arts, entertainment, and recreation 1.6 1.1
 Lodging 0.7 0.7



4L E G I S L A T I V E  A N A L Y S T ’ S  O F F I C E

March 18, 2015

LAO
70  YEARS OF SERVICE

  Lodging Industry Employment Growth Generally Tracks 
State Employment. Nearly 210,000 people worked in the 
lodging industry in 2014, up from about 197,000 in 2000. (The 
employment data in this fi gure is drawn from employer surveys 
and likely excludes many people offering lodging through 
Internet sites.) While employment in the lodging industry 
generally tracks growth in overall state jobs, growth in total state 
employment has outpaced job growth in the lodging industry

  Industry Wages Are Below the State’s Average. In 2012, the 
average earnings for a private sector worker in California was 
about  $54,000. The average pay for a person in the lodging 
industry was almost $28,000. Part of this difference in annual 
wages may refl ect a greater likelihood that lodging industry 
employees work part-time.  

Employment Growth in 
State’s Lodging Industry

Annual Change in Number of Jobs In California

-8

-6

-4

-2

2

4%

Lodging Sector

Total

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014



5L E G I S L A T I V E  A N A L Y S T ’ S  O F F I C E

March 18, 2015

LAO
70  YEARS OF SERVICE

  Historically, Many Alternatives to Hotels. California has long 
had vacation home rentals, time-shares, bed and breakfasts, 
hostels, boarding homes, extended stay facilities, and 
campgrounds. In addition, many travelers stay with relatives and 
friends. 

  The Internet Has Made it Easy to Rent Residential Lodging 
for a Short Stay. It has allowed for the creation of a two-sided 
marketplace that matches people who rent out their homes 
(“hosts”) with people looking for a place to stay (“guests”). 
Searching, information gathering, and contract completion is 
simple.

  How it Works. Host creates a listing that describes the room 
or residence offered, price, location, and house rules. The host 
usually posts photographs. 

  Potential guests message hosts directly. When a potential 
guest puts in a reservation request, the host has a day or so 
to accept or decline it. 

  If a host accepts a reservation, the host and guest coordinate 
meeting times. After the visit, users (and, sometimes, 
the hosts) post reviews of one another. Reviews provide 
references for other guests and hosts. The site also may 
examine reviews to assess whether to bar a host or guest 
from using the site in the future. 

Changes to Lodging Industry:
Short-Term Rentals



6L E G I S L A T I V E  A N A L Y S T ’ S  O F F I C E

March 18, 2015

LAO
70  YEARS OF SERVICE

  Airbnb. Started in 2008, this privately held company reports 
that it has over 1 million listings in 190 counties, including room 
rentals and rentals of entire homes. Airbnb states that it made 
its millionth booking in 2011 and its 25 millionth booking in 2014. 
Various media accounts estimate Airbnb’s 2013 revenue at $250 
million. 

  HomeAway. Started in 2004, this company held its initial public 
offering in 2011. Like Airbnb, HomeAway reports that it has 
over 1 million listings in 190 countries. HomeAway’s listings are 
primarily entire homes, not rooms. Total revenues grew by 23 
percent in 2014 to over $119 million. HomeAway acquired and 
operates many other short-term rental sites, including VRBO.
com, VacationRentals.com, and BedandBreakfast.com. 

  Major Traditional Lodging Providers. In 2014, Marriot had 
more than 3,900 properties, with over 700,000 rooms in 79 
countries, and reported revenues of nearly $14 billion. In 2014, 
Hyatt reported having nearly 600 hotels, over 150,000 rooms, 
and revenues of over $4 billion.

Growth in Short-Term Rental Sector



7L E G I S L A T I V E  A N A L Y S T ’ S  O F F I C E

March 18, 2015

LAO
70  YEARS OF SERVICE

  Generates Income for Providers 

  Most Rental Income Remains With Hosts. Combined 
administrative fees (paid by host and guest) typically are in 
range of up to 10 percent to 15 percent of rental costs. 

  Provides Supplemental Income for Many Households. 
Two studies of Airbnb usage—one of a four-year period in 
New York City and one of single day in San Francisco—
found that roughly 90 percent of hosts had two or fewer 
properties. Households typically rented out their own 
residence (in part or in full) or a second property. There 
is some evidence that these households have lower than 
median income. 

  Ongoing Business Income for Other Hosts. Some 
property owners rent many properties year round and are 
using these sites to facilitate their property management 
business operations. The New York City study estimated that 
these hosts received about a third of Airbnb rental income in 
the city. 

  Visitors Save Money

  Short-term renters may save 20 percent or more, relative to 
the cost of a hotel. These savings can allow visitors to stay 
longer, or spend more on other leisure and tourism activities.

  Community’s Lodging Infrastructure Expands  

  Repurposing idle capacity in a community expands the 
community’s lodging infrastructure without new construction. 

  This can be particularly advantageous if a community 
experiences unusually high demand for lodging (such as 
during a major sporting event), or is located in an area where 
new construction poses environmental concerns.

Short-Term Rentals From a Public Policy 
Standpoint: Attributes



8L E G I S L A T I V E  A N A L Y S T ’ S  O F F I C E

March 18, 2015

LAO
70  YEARS OF SERVICE

  Despite Prevalence of Short-Term Rentals, Their Legal 
Status Is Murky

  Short-term rentals have been called “illegal hotels” because 
some are inconsistent with local land use or business 
regulatory policies.

 – While many California communities have land use policies 
that limit or bar rentals of less than 30 days, short-term 
rental companies show listings throughout the state.  

 – The New York State Attorney General estimated that 
over 70 percent of the Airbnb properties rented in New 
York City violated one or more local planning or business 
regulations.  

 – The New Orleans Times-Picayune reported fi nding 
hundreds of short-term rentals listed for the French 
Quarter, despite a local law banning rentals of fewer than 
60 days in the neighborhood.

  Governments worldwide are reconsidering their policies to 
more clearly allow, regulate, or prohibit short-term rentals. 

 – France legalized short-term rentals of primary residences 
throughout the country.

 – Amsterdam adopted a law allowing residents to rent their 
homes for up to two months of the year to up to four 
people at a time, provided they pay the relevant taxes. 

 – San Francisco’s new ordinance allows permanent 
residents to rent rooms if they register with the city, carry 
liability insurance, pay the city’s 14 percent hotel tax, and 
satisfy other criteria.

 – Burbank enacted rules banning short-term vacation 
rentals in residential zones. 

Short-Term Rentals From a Public Policy 
Standpoint: Concerns



9L E G I S L A T I V E  A N A L Y S T ’ S  O F F I C E

March 18, 2015

LAO
70  YEARS OF SERVICE

  Short-Term Rentals Can Disrupt Community Expectations 
About Residential Neighborhoods

  Many land use policies aim to separate residential properties 
from areas used for transient lodging. As a result, neighbors 
may be surprised if a residential property is used for business 
purposes. 

  Although a host may screen prospective guests, neighbors 
may not have access to this information or know where to 
complain if problems arise on the property.

  Hosts May Not Pay Business and Tourism Taxes

  Short-term rental companies typically advise hosts that they 
need to comply with local tax laws, but actual practices vary.

 – A study by the San Diego City Treasurer’s Offi ce in 
September 2014 found that 50 percent of short-term rental 
owners did not pay hotel occupancy taxes.

 – Some companies collect transient occupancy taxes 
directly from the customer. Airbnb collects these taxes 
only in six cities: San Francisco, San Jose, Amsterdam, 
Portland, Chicago, and the District of Columbia. 

  Because California cities charge relatively high transient 
occupancy taxes, noncompliance can result in signifi cantly 
reduced tax revenues.

  Resolving taxation issues related to short-term rentals is 
diffi cult without resolving the related regulatory issues. It is 
diffi cult to collect taxes from an industry sector that a city 
does not permit to operate.

Short-Term Rentals From a Public Policy 
Standpoint: Concerns                      (Continued)



10L E G I S L A T I V E  A N A L Y S T ’ S  O F F I C E

March 18, 2015

LAO
70  YEARS OF SERVICE

  Growth in Short-Term Rentals Might Affect Traditional 
Lodging Sector

  Economic theory suggests that prices fall when supply 
increases or substitutes become available. While research 
is limited, there are some signs that growth in the short-
term rental sector has placed downward pressure on the 
traditional lodging sector’s prices and gross revenues.

  A recent Boston University study found that every 10 percent 
increase in the number of Airbnb rentals in Texas resulted in 
a 0.35 percent reduction in monthly hotel revenue. In the City 
of Austin, where Airbnb supply is large, the study concluded 
that this was equivalent to a 13 percent reduction in hotel 
revenue, with the effect concentrated among lower-cost 
hotels and hotels not catering to business travel.

  Changes to Employment Patterns and Tax Revenues 
Possible

  Employment Patterns May Change. If more tourists stay in 
short-term rentals and fewer in traditional hotels, jobs in the 
traditional lodging sector might be negatively affected. At the 
same time, however, tourists and hosts involved in the 
short-term rental sector might spend their savings/earning on 
other goods and services, leading to increased jobs in these 
other sectors. 

  Tax Revenues May Change. If a greater percentage of 
travelers stay in short-term rentals, tourism taxes might 
decline because these rentals typically cost less and some 
hosts currently do not pay taxes as required. The net effect 
on state and local tax revenues, however, would depend 
on the extent to which (1) visitors travel more or stay longer 
in response to these cost savings, (2) travelers and hosts 
spend their savings on items subject to other taxes, and 
(3) hosts’ personal income tax liabilities increase due to their 
rental income earnings.

Potential Changes to Economy





















































































State Regulation Description Internet link:
AirBNB has a list of which states require an occupancy transient tax to be paid

p p
occupancy-tax-collection-and-remittance-by-airbnb-available

Alabama No state preemption statutes
Alaska No state preemption statutes
Arizona Has state preemption statute

p j
5076/; http://law.justia.com/codes/arizona/2016/title-9/section-

Arkansas No state preemption statutes
California

   q g     p      y  
platform

     §  ( g,   
through all 2016 legislation and propositions (2016 Regular 

Colorado No state preemption statutes
Connecticut No state preemption statutes
Delaware No state preemption statutes
Florida No state preemption statute http://floridarevenue.com/Forms_library/current/gt800034.pdf
Georgia No state preemption statute
Hawaii

p        p ,   p  g   
2017 HI H.B. 1470; http://www.capitol.hawaii.gov/session2017/bills/HB1470_.PDF

Idaho Introduced State Preemption Legislation in 2017 ID H.B. 66
p g g y q y

4643-893d-2eee2b76f0ee/10/doc/
Illinois No state preemption statutes
Indiana

     g  p g p y  ; ,    
state sup. ct. permitted a locality to enforce zoning regulation that forbade STR of single-

Iowa
  p p       p    ,    

https://legiscan.com/IA/bill/HF161/2015
Kansas No state preemption statute or case law
Kentucky No state preemption statute or case law
Louisiana No state preemption statute or case law
Maine No state preemption statute or case law
Maryland

  p p      pp y, p     g   
to Montgomery County, MD Planning Commission stating that STRs for less than one month 

Massachusetts
  p p             p   ,   

am assuming that regulation is left to the localities: 

Michigan

No state preemption or case law. News article (from 2015) noting that no state law exists; 
only munis regulate: http://www.detroitnews.com/story/business/2015/12/14/airbnb-laws-
room-rentals-tourist-travel/77267022/

Minnesota

No state preemption. Some cities have limited availability, (e.g. cannot rent out residential 
zone for less than 15 days. http://www.kare11.com/news/mn-cities-starting-to-regulate-
airbnb/31904731) --- St. Paul considered regulations in July 2016; article notes that 
Minneapolis had not passed any regualtion on point as there were not yet problems with 
STRs http://www.startribune.com/st-paul-considers-regulations-on-short-term-rentals-like-
airbnb/385777301/

Mississippi No state preemption or case law. 

Missouri

No state preemption or case law. State House passed a bill protecting AirBnB from local 
regulations: http://www.washingtontimes.com/news/2016/may/2/missouri-house-passes-
legislation-to-protect-airbn/ No news since; doesn't seem that it was enacted into law. 
http://www.house.mo.gov/bill.aspx?bill=HB2662&year=2016&code=R

Montana 

No enacted preemption or case law. However, Mont. Code Ann. § 50-51-102(12) defines 
“[t]ourist home” [as] a private home or condominium that is not occupied by an owner or 
manager and that is rented, leased, or furnished in its entirety to transient guests on a daily 
or weekly basis." which requires that "a person engaged in the business of conducting or 
operating an establishment shall annually procure a license issued by the department [of 
public heath and human services.]" Mont. Code Ann. § 50-51-201. Apparently, these 
operators are subject to inspection and report by "[s]tate and local health officers, 
sanitarians-in-training, and registered sanitarians . . . ." Mont. Code Ann. § 50-51-301. But, 
again, no finding of an express preemption of local regulation. 

https://www.airbnb.com/help/article/653/in-what-areas-is-occupancy-tax-collection-and-remittance-by-airbnb-available
https://www.airbnb.com/help/article/653/in-what-areas-is-occupancy-tax-collection-and-remittance-by-airbnb-available
http://floridarevenue.com/Forms_library/current/gt800034.pdf
http://www.capitol.hawaii.gov/session2017/bills/HB1470_.PDF
http://legislature.search.idaho.gov/isysquery/f91b3557-5de3-4643-893d-2eee2b76f0ee/10/doc/
http://legislature.search.idaho.gov/isysquery/f91b3557-5de3-4643-893d-2eee2b76f0ee/10/doc/


Nebraska
"an act to prohibit ordinances and resolutions prohibiting short-term rentals of residential 
property"

http://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/105/PDF/Intro/LB62
8.pdf

Nevada
No preemption statute currently; however, legislature just convened on Feb 6th, they meet 
on odd years or have a special session https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/79th2017/

New Hampshire Passed HB531 2015; HB654 and S173 Pending 2017 regarding taxation
http://gencourt.state.nh.us/bill_status/billText.aspx?sy=2017&i
d=287&txtFormat=html

New Hampshire
"Radiator Cap" amendment to HB 654 would replace text of bill and create study 
commission on regulating short term rentals

http://gencourt.state.nh.us/bill_status/billtext.aspx?sy=2017&t
xtFormat=amend&id=2017-0374H

New Jersey

A215 did not pass:  The "Seaside Lodging and Rental District Act"; imposes tax on certain 
lodging properties for tourism promotion therein.

https://legiscan.com/NJ/bill/A215/2014

New Mexico No current preemption statute; a couple of STR Occ Tax bills are pending
https://www.nmlegis.gov/Legislation/Legislation?chamber=H&
legType=B&legNo=266&year=17

New York

It's complicated:  "Last October, New York Governor Andrew Cuomo signed legislation that 
effectively banned short-term rentals within the state." 
https://panampost.com/editor/2017/02/13/anti-airbnb-legislation-reaches-ridiculous-level-in-
nyc/

After discussing the situation with the state of New York, 
Airbnb agreed to abandon their lawsuit and in return, the state 
promised to only prosecute those listing their homes on the 
site, instead of the company itself.

North Carolina

2016 Special Session free-for all. Who knows.  (still looking) H347 listed on map, from 2105 
session was a single county occupancy tax authorization    
http://www.ncleg.net/Applications/BillLookUp/LoadBillDocument.aspx?SessionCode=2015&
DocNum=1664&SeqNum=0

http://www.ncleg.net/Sessions/2015/Bills/Senate/PDF/S842v1
.pdf

North Dakota Nope

Ohio No state pre-emption; local regulations are tax-oriented http://www.policymattersohio.org/blogpost-airbnb-march2016   

Oklahoma Nope
http://www.oklegislature.gov/SubjectIndex.aspx?Default=A&S
ession=Current

Oregon
No statewide preemption; notable cities have bans or restrictions; no known pending 
statewide leg. 2015 tax collection bill HB2067 held in committee https://www.airbnb.com/help/article/875/portland--or

Pennsylvania 3 pending bills H1314 H794 H1316; all failed and all were to enforce tax collections

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/CFDOCS/Legis/PN/Public/btChec
k.cfm?txtType=PDF&sessYr=2015&sessInd=0&billBody=H&b
illTyp=B&billNbr=1314&pn=1777

Rhode Island

For anyone renting out an entire home/cottage/condo/etc., for 30 days or less, must register 
with the Division of Taxation and oay a $10 fee annually and are charged 7% sales tax and 
1% hotel tax. If renting rooms for 30 days or less must register for a sales permit with the 
division and pay the $10 fee but be charged 7% sales tax, 5% hotel tax; and 1% tax on all 
transactions. 

https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=
web&cd=1&ved=0ahUKEwibt6yZgIbSAhUC3GMKHQEfCdIQ
FggcMAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tax.ri.gov%2FTax%252
0Website%2FTAX%2Fnotice%2FShort-
term%2520residential%2520rentals%2520--
%2520FAQs%2520--%252007-15-
15%2520final.pdf&usg=AFQjCNHsGkD4fRNkY-7GRntB_Ydu-
HdT8w&cad=rja

South Carolina no state premption statute
South Dakota nope

Tennessee

Currently the state is letting the counties/cities make their own legislation. However, state 
legislature is attempting to keep counties from making their laws too over reaching. 
Nashville has created a system that hinders short-term rentals such as Airbnb, and this new 
law if accepted will help such rentals. 

http://www.tennessean.com/story/news/politics/2017/02/09/st
ate-bill-would-override-nashville-short-term-rental-rules-block-
ban/97699934/

Texas

Short erm Rental regulations are left up to the cities to regulate or de-regulate. Texas court's 
have been leaning on limiting restrictions on STR's. 

http://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/105/PDF/Intro/LB628.pdf
http://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/105/PDF/Intro/LB628.pdf
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/79th2017/
http://gencourt.state.nh.us/bill_status/billText.aspx?sy=2017&id=287&txtFormat=html
http://gencourt.state.nh.us/bill_status/billText.aspx?sy=2017&id=287&txtFormat=html
http://gencourt.state.nh.us/bill_status/billtext.aspx?sy=2017&txtFormat=amend&id=2017-0374H
http://gencourt.state.nh.us/bill_status/billtext.aspx?sy=2017&txtFormat=amend&id=2017-0374H
https://legiscan.com/NJ/bill/A215/2014
https://www.nmlegis.gov/Legislation/Legislation?chamber=H&legType=B&legNo=266&year=17
https://www.nmlegis.gov/Legislation/Legislation?chamber=H&legType=B&legNo=266&year=17
http://www.ncleg.net/Sessions/2015/Bills/Senate/PDF/S842v1.pdf
http://www.ncleg.net/Sessions/2015/Bills/Senate/PDF/S842v1.pdf
http://www.policymattersohio.org/blogpost-airbnb-march2016
http://www.oklegislature.gov/SubjectIndex.aspx?Default=A&Session=Current
http://www.oklegislature.gov/SubjectIndex.aspx?Default=A&Session=Current
https://www.airbnb.com/help/article/875/portland--or
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/CFDOCS/Legis/PN/Public/btCheck.cfm?txtType=PDF&sessYr=2015&sessInd=0&billBody=H&billTyp=B&billNbr=1314&pn=1777
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/CFDOCS/Legis/PN/Public/btCheck.cfm?txtType=PDF&sessYr=2015&sessInd=0&billBody=H&billTyp=B&billNbr=1314&pn=1777
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/CFDOCS/Legis/PN/Public/btCheck.cfm?txtType=PDF&sessYr=2015&sessInd=0&billBody=H&billTyp=B&billNbr=1314&pn=1777
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&ved=0ahUKEwibt6yZgIbSAhUC3GMKHQEfCdIQFggcMAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tax.ri.gov%2FTax%2520Website%2FTAX%2Fnotice%2FShort-term%2520residential%2520rentals%2520--%2520FAQs%2520--%252007-15-15%2520final.pdf&usg=AFQjCNHsGkD4fRNkY-7GRntB_Ydu-HdT8w&cad=rja
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&ved=0ahUKEwibt6yZgIbSAhUC3GMKHQEfCdIQFggcMAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tax.ri.gov%2FTax%2520Website%2FTAX%2Fnotice%2FShort-term%2520residential%2520rentals%2520--%2520FAQs%2520--%252007-15-15%2520final.pdf&usg=AFQjCNHsGkD4fRNkY-7GRntB_Ydu-HdT8w&cad=rja
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&ved=0ahUKEwibt6yZgIbSAhUC3GMKHQEfCdIQFggcMAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tax.ri.gov%2FTax%2520Website%2FTAX%2Fnotice%2FShort-term%2520residential%2520rentals%2520--%2520FAQs%2520--%252007-15-15%2520final.pdf&usg=AFQjCNHsGkD4fRNkY-7GRntB_Ydu-HdT8w&cad=rja
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&ved=0ahUKEwibt6yZgIbSAhUC3GMKHQEfCdIQFggcMAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tax.ri.gov%2FTax%2520Website%2FTAX%2Fnotice%2FShort-term%2520residential%2520rentals%2520--%2520FAQs%2520--%252007-15-15%2520final.pdf&usg=AFQjCNHsGkD4fRNkY-7GRntB_Ydu-HdT8w&cad=rja
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&ved=0ahUKEwibt6yZgIbSAhUC3GMKHQEfCdIQFggcMAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tax.ri.gov%2FTax%2520Website%2FTAX%2Fnotice%2FShort-term%2520residential%2520rentals%2520--%2520FAQs%2520--%252007-15-15%2520final.pdf&usg=AFQjCNHsGkD4fRNkY-7GRntB_Ydu-HdT8w&cad=rja
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&ved=0ahUKEwibt6yZgIbSAhUC3GMKHQEfCdIQFggcMAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tax.ri.gov%2FTax%2520Website%2FTAX%2Fnotice%2FShort-term%2520residential%2520rentals%2520--%2520FAQs%2520--%252007-15-15%2520final.pdf&usg=AFQjCNHsGkD4fRNkY-7GRntB_Ydu-HdT8w&cad=rja
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&ved=0ahUKEwibt6yZgIbSAhUC3GMKHQEfCdIQFggcMAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tax.ri.gov%2FTax%2520Website%2FTAX%2Fnotice%2FShort-term%2520residential%2520rentals%2520--%2520FAQs%2520--%252007-15-15%2520final.pdf&usg=AFQjCNHsGkD4fRNkY-7GRntB_Ydu-HdT8w&cad=rja
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&ved=0ahUKEwibt6yZgIbSAhUC3GMKHQEfCdIQFggcMAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tax.ri.gov%2FTax%2520Website%2FTAX%2Fnotice%2FShort-term%2520residential%2520rentals%2520--%2520FAQs%2520--%252007-15-15%2520final.pdf&usg=AFQjCNHsGkD4fRNkY-7GRntB_Ydu-HdT8w&cad=rja
http://www.tennessean.com/story/news/politics/2017/02/09/state-bill-would-override-nashville-short-term-rental-rules-block-ban/97699934/
http://www.tennessean.com/story/news/politics/2017/02/09/state-bill-would-override-nashville-short-term-rental-rules-block-ban/97699934/
http://www.tennessean.com/story/news/politics/2017/02/09/state-bill-would-override-nashville-short-term-rental-rules-block-ban/97699934/


Utah No state law preempting local gov't from adopting ordinancs

Vermont Renters are subject to a meals and room tax
http://tax.vermont.gov/business-and-corp/meals-and-rooms-
tax/short-term-rentals

Virginia
Virginia allows local municipalities to tax short term renters as they wish. They also defined 
what a short term renter is in this legislation attached. 

http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/title58.1/chapter35/section58.
1-3510.4/

Washington
Washinton applies at 6.5% state sales tax on short term rentals. However, local laws can 
add to that. 

http://www.dor.wa.gov/Content/GetAFormOrPublication/Public
ationBySubject/TaxTopics/ShortTermRentals.aspx

West Virginia No state premption statute
Wisconsin No state premption statute
Wyoming No state premption statute

http://tax.vermont.gov/business-and-corp/meals-and-rooms-tax/short-term-rentals
http://tax.vermont.gov/business-and-corp/meals-and-rooms-tax/short-term-rentals
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/title58.1/chapter35/section58.1-3510.4/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/title58.1/chapter35/section58.1-3510.4/
http://www.dor.wa.gov/Content/GetAFormOrPublication/PublicationBySubject/TaxTopics/ShortTermRentals.aspx
http://www.dor.wa.gov/Content/GetAFormOrPublication/PublicationBySubject/TaxTopics/ShortTermRentals.aspx




"Radiator cap" means to take off a car's radiator 
cap, drive the car out from under it, drive a 
whole new car under it, and put the cap back on.  
Thus, to "radiator cap" a bill is to retain only the 
bill's number or parts of the title.  This has been 
done a few times in Idaho.

https://www.idahoednews.org/kevins-blog/the-
dark-art-of-radiator-capping/

http://www.njleg.state.nj.us/2014/Bills/A0500/21
5_I1.PDF

https://www.nmlegis.gov/Legislation/Legislation?
chamber=S&legType=B&legNo=254&year=17

http://www.ncleg.net/sessions/2015e4/bills/hous
e/html/h3v1.html

Unlike Idaho, North Carolina is apparently 
unconstrained with requirements for legislation to 
have a "single subject"

https://www.legislature.ohio.gov/legislation?15&pageSize=500&start=1&sort=LegislationNumber&dir=asc&keywords=rental&statusCode&generalAssemblies=131

https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2015R1/Measures/
Overview/HB2067

https://blog.princelaw.com/2016/07/25/private-
room-rentals-under-30-days-are-subject-to-pas-6-
hotel-occupancy-tax/

https://www.idahoednews.org/kevins-blog/the-dark-art-of-radiator-capping/
https://www.idahoednews.org/kevins-blog/the-dark-art-of-radiator-capping/
http://www.njleg.state.nj.us/2014/Bills/A0500/215_I1.PDF
http://www.njleg.state.nj.us/2014/Bills/A0500/215_I1.PDF
https://www.nmlegis.gov/Legislation/Legislation?chamber=S&legType=B&legNo=254&year=17
https://www.nmlegis.gov/Legislation/Legislation?chamber=S&legType=B&legNo=254&year=17
http://www.ncleg.net/sessions/2015e4/bills/house/html/h3v1.html
http://www.ncleg.net/sessions/2015e4/bills/house/html/h3v1.html
https://www.legislature.ohio.gov/legislation?15&pageSize=500&start=1&sort=LegislationNumber&dir=asc&keywords=rental&statusCode&generalAssemblies=131
https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2015R1/Measures/Overview/HB2067
https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2015R1/Measures/Overview/HB2067
https://blog.princelaw.com/2016/07/25/private-room-rentals-under-30-days-are-subject-to-pas-6-hotel-occupancy-tax/
https://blog.princelaw.com/2016/07/25/private-room-rentals-under-30-days-are-subject-to-pas-6-hotel-occupancy-tax/
https://blog.princelaw.com/2016/07/25/private-room-rentals-under-30-days-are-subject-to-pas-6-hotel-occupancy-tax/


Addressing the 
Growth of Short-
Term Rentals  

 
Nicole DuPuis, Principal Associate for 
Urban Innovation, National League of 
Cities 



SHARING AND THE CITY 



















Home Sharing 

States Preempt Local Control on 



 

No one size fits all solution 
 



This might look and work 
different in communities of 
different sizes, with different 
needs 
 

 



Be aware of other regulations 
(state level) 



Flexibility is key 









 

From Homestays to Illegal Hotels  

• Homestay (couchsurfing, true spare room) 
• Whole unit available only some of the time 
• Whole unit available all the time / vacation rental 
• Converted residential room into STR room 

• Whole urban unit available all of the time for 

STR / illegal hotel 

 







Get the book: 

http://shareable.net 
 
Contact me: 

Neal Gorenflo 
neal@shareable.net 
@gorenflo 
 
 

http://shareable.net/
mailto:neal@shareable.net


Addressing the Growth of Short-Term Rentals  
Context, enforcement best practices and tools 



AGENDA 

• Market Context 
 

• Regulatory Best Practices 
 

• Enforcement Challenges 
 

• Compliance Monitoring  and Enforcement Tools Overview 
 



Sources: AirBnB, HomeAway, VRBO and Flipkey 3 

AIRBNB, VRBO AND 100’S OF OTHER VACATION RENTAL WEBSITES 
HAVE TURNED VACATION RENTALS INTO A BOOMING 
(UNDERGROUND) ECONOMY 

$32 Billion  
annual market in U.S. 

alone 
 

1/3 Americans have 
now stayed at a STR 
(up from 1/10 in 2015) 



Source: Host Compliance 4 

45% 

22% 

13% 

11% 

9% 

Listings 

Airbnb VRBO Flipkey HomeAway Other

WHILE AIRBNB AND VRBO GETS ALL THE PRESS, THEY ARE ONLY TWO 
OF THE PLAYERS IN A FRAGMENTED MARKET 



THE STR MARKET IS VERY DYNAMIC AND SEASONAL 

 

             
             
               

             

            
      

   

Active STR 
listings as of 

7/19/16 

4,570 

New STR 
listings 

between 
7/19/16 and 

2/24/17 

+3,317 7,887 

-2,226 

Total # of 
Listings active 

between 
7/19/16 and 

2/24/17 

Listings 
deactivated 

between 
7/19/16 and 

2/24/17 

Active STR 
listings as of 

2/24/17 

5,761 

New STRs 
as a % of 

Active STRs 
on 7/19/16 

= 72% 

Nashville, TN 



SHORT-TERM RENTALS ARE BECOMING A REAL ISSUE IN 
THOUSANDS OF COMMUNITIES ACROSS NORTH AMERICA. 

6 

# of North 
American Cities & 

Counties with 
More than 50 STR 

listings 

2,727 



AGENDA 

• Market Context 
 

• Regulatory Best Practices 
 

• Enforcement Challenges 
 

• Compliance Monitoring  and Enforcement Tools Overview 



 
 

8 

Santa Monica, CA 
1,252 STRs 

West Hollywood, CA 
1,324 STRs 

FULL OUT SHORT-TERM RENTAL BANS HAVE PROVEN TO BE 
INEFFECTIVE AND EXPENSIVE TO ENFORCE. 

Miami Beach, FL 
7,112 STRs 

New York, NY 
45,433 STRs 

Bans  
don’t  
work! 



 
 

9 

o Housing Availability 

STR Policy Objective Regulatory Best Practices 

• Only allow permanent residents to operate STRs 
• Disallow rentals in subsidized housing 

• Set neighborhood quotas 
• Ban signs 

• Require adequate parking and garbage disposal 
• Require hosts to post noise ordinance 
• Require a local contact person 

o Neighborhood Preservation 

o Protect Quality of Life 

o Economic Development 

o Safety 

• Encourage hosting in certain areas and time 
frames 

• Require physical safety and habitability inspections 

LOCAL GOVERNMENTS ARE FINDING WAYS TO MITIGATE THE NEGATIVE 
CONSEQUENCES OF STRS THROUGH THOUGHTFUL LEGISLATION 



AGENDA 

• Market Context 
 

• Regulatory Best Practices 
 

• Enforcement Challenges 
 

• Compliance Monitoring  and Enforcement Tools Overview 



ORDINANCE COMPLIANCE HAS TRADITIONALLY BEEN 
LACKING IN MOST CITIES WITH SHORT-TERM RENTAL RULES   

11 

0% 
Compliance 

100% 
Compliance 

San 
Francisco, 
CA 24% 

Hallandale 
Beach, FL 

1% 

New York, 
NY 

 25% 

Virginia 
Beach, VA 

5% 

Permit Compliance Rate Examples: 



STR PROPERTY LISTINGS ARE SPREAD ACROSS 
100s OF DIFFERENT WEBSITES 

12 



LISTINGS (AND DUPLICATES) CHANGE, COME AND GO ALL THE TIME 

13 

HomeAway Listing FlipKey Listing 



ADDRESS AND CONTACT INFO IS HIDDEN FROM LISTINGS, MAKING 
IT TIME-CONSUMING OR IMPOSSIBLE TO LOCATE THE PROPERTIES 

14 



15 

KEEPING TRACK OF 100S OR 1,000S OF STR LISTINGS IS A 
SPREADSHEET NIGHTMARE  

IT JUST 
DOESN’T 
WORK 



THE VACATION RENTAL PLATFORMS REFUSE TO EXCHANGE 
DETAILED USER DATA WITH LOCAL GOVERNMENTS 

16 



“DRIVE-BYS” IS NOT A COST-EFFECTIVE METHOD TO IDENTIFY 
ILLEGAL SHORT-TERM RENTALS AND RENTERS 

17 

Drivebys provide limited value: 
• Difficult to spot the presence of 

short-term renters and rentals as 
they generally do not stand out    

• Requires a lot of luck to actually 
catch “people in the act” 
 
 



CONDUCTING STRING OPERATIONS TO CATCH ILLEGAL SHORT-
TERM RENTALS IS VERY TIME CONSUMING AND POLITICALLY 
SENSITIVE 

18 

Sting operations are challenging: 

• Politically difficult! 
• Takes a lot of time (~1 week per 

listing) 
• Requires a large number of non-

city credit cards  



AGENDA 

• Market Context 
 

• Regulatory Best Practices 
 

• Enforcement Challenges 
 

• Compliance Monitoring  and Enforcement Tools Overview 



20 

MOBILE ENABLED ONLINE PERMITTING AND REGISTRATION 
SYSTEMS CAN MINIMIZE PERCEIVED RED-TAPE AND REDUCE 
BACK-OFFICE PAPERWORK  



21 

ADDRESS IDENTIFICATION SOFTWARE AND SERVICES CAN 
HELP CITIES QUICKLY PINPOINT STR ADDRESSES AT SCALE  



22 



23 

SOFTWARE CAN AUTOMATE THE COLLECTION OF EVIDENCE 



24 

AUTOMATED COMPLIANCE MONITORING AND MAILING 
SERVICES CAN ELIMINATE 90% OF THE INTERNAL WORK 
ASSOCIATED WITH MAILING OUT NOTICES OF VIOLATIONS 



25 

RENTAL ACTIVITY MONITORING SERVICES CAN HELP IDENTIFY TAX 
FRAUD AND IDENTIFY VIOLATIONS OF RENTAL NIGHT CAPS 



26 

Step 1 

Concerned neighbor calls 24/7 short-term rental hotline 
Step 2 

Complainant provides info on alleged violation and is 
asked to provide photo, video or other proof of alleged 

violation 

Step 3 

If property is registered, Host Compliance 
immediately calls host to seek resolution 

Step 4 

Problem solved or escalated – Complaints saved in 
database so serial offenders be held accountable 

We have 
received a 
compliant! 

OUTSOURCED 24/7 STR HOTLINE SERVICES CAN MAKE IT EASY TO 
CAPTURE, PROVE AND RESOLVE NON-EMERGENCY STR RELATED 
PROBLEMS IN REAL-TIME  



27 

Hermosa Beach, CA Case Study 

Illegal STRs in Hermosa Beach 

Host Compliance Begin Sending Letters to Illegal 
STR operators 

Truckee, CA Case Study 

Non-compliant STRs in Truckee 

-32% 
-50% 

COMMERCIALLY AVAILABLE ENFORCEMENT TOOLS HAVE PROVEN TO 
BE VERY EFFECTIVE 

Asheville, NC Case Study 

# of Notices of Violations Issued 

4 

126 

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140

Before Host
Compliance

After Host
Compliance

28x  
increase! 



28 

Ulrik Binzer  

binzer@hostcompliance.com 

857.928.0955 

www.hostcompliance.com 


	01 2-07-2018 Plan Commission Agenda
	02 PC Minutes 20190103 - Draft
	03 Bobber PC Staff Report 20190207 Final
	04 ApplicationONLY_Redacted
	05 PLAT OF RESUB  12-05-18
	06 TOPO  12-06-18
	07 Plat of Survey & Legal
	08 hanes letter
	09 CTF Illinois - PC Staff Report 20190207 Final
	10 CTF IL App Only_Redacted
	11 CTF IL Submittals Only
	12 2013 Survey
	13 2009 Proposed Landscap Plan
	14 2009 Proposed Landscap Details
	15 Anytime Fitness SU Staff Report 20190207 Final
	16 Anytime Special Use Application_Redacted
	17 Finding of Facts Special Use
	18 Survey MarkeD
	19 Anytime Floor Plan
	Sheets
	DD - Compliance Drawing


	20 Any Time Fitness_Parking Study
	21 Anytime Fitness Brochure 1
	22 Anytime Fitness Brochure 2
	23 2.07.19_short term rental Staff report Com Dev Committee FINAL
	24 arirbnb tcpwkc2
	25 1.20.19_ABC article cameras in airbnb in florida
	26 .1 Articles on Short Term Rental
	27 .1 Sharing-Economy-Rentals-031815
	28 .2 chicago article
	29 Article_airbnb Philadelphia
	30 example Ordinances regulating short term rental
	31 50 States Survey of State Law on Short-Term Rentals
	Sheet1

	32 S562_APA presentation download
	NPC17-Addressing-the-Growth-in-Short-Term-Rentals
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16

	Addressing the Growth in Short-Term Rentals
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	�From Homestays to Illegal Hotels 
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6

	Addressing the Growth of Short-Term Rentals - Host Compliance Slides
	Slide Number 1
	AGENDA
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	THE STR MARKET IS VERY DYNAMIC AND SEASONAL
	SHORT-TERM RENTALS ARE BECOMING A REAL ISSUE IN THOUSANDS OF COMMUNITIES ACROSS NORTH AMERICA.
	AGENDA
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	AGENDA
	ORDINANCE COMPLIANCE HAS TRADITIONALLY BEEN LACKING IN MOST CITIES WITH SHORT-TERM RENTAL RULES  
	STR PROPERTY LISTINGS ARE SPREAD ACROSS 100s OF DIFFERENT WEBSITES
	LISTINGS (AND DUPLICATES) CHANGE, COME AND GO ALL THE TIME
	ADDRESS AND CONTACT INFO IS HIDDEN FROM LISTINGS, MAKING IT TIME-CONSUMING OR IMPOSSIBLE TO LOCATE THE PROPERTIES
	KEEPING TRACK OF 100S OR 1,000S OF STR LISTINGS IS A SPREADSHEET NIGHTMARE 
	THE VACATION RENTAL PLATFORMS REFUSE TO EXCHANGE DETAILED USER DATA WITH LOCAL GOVERNMENTS
	“DRIVE-BYS” IS NOT A COST-EFFECTIVE METHOD TO IDENTIFY ILLEGAL SHORT-TERM RENTALS AND RENTERS
	CONDUCTING STRING OPERATIONS TO CATCH ILLEGAL SHORT-TERM RENTALS IS VERY TIME CONSUMING AND POLITICALLY SENSITIVE
	AGENDA
	MOBILE ENABLED ONLINE PERMITTING AND REGISTRATION SYSTEMS CAN MINIMIZE PERCEIVED RED-TAPE AND REDUCE BACK-OFFICE PAPERWORK 
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26
	Slide Number 27
	Slide Number 28





